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Department of Finance

April 15, 2011

Honorable Mayor, Common Council members
and Citizens of Franklin:

Introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2010, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all general
purpose local governments with a population over 25,000 publish, within six months of the
end of the fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements be presented in conformity with
general accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of
Franklin (City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, management of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh the benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of
internat controls has been designed to provide reascnable rather than absolute assurance
that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we
assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included in this report.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Clifton Gunderson LLP, a firm of
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involves examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2010, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9728 (414) 425-7500 Fax: (414) 425-6428



Mayor, Commeon Council and Citizens
April 15, 2011

City Profile

The City of Franklin, incorporated in 1956, is located in the southwestern corner of
Milwaukee County. The City is 34.5 square miles in size and has a population of 35,451.
Over the last ten years the City has experienced an average annual population increase of
1.9% per year. The city is a residential community (72.2%) with a growing commercial and
industrial base (27.8%). It is considered fo be one of the more desirable communities in the
Milwaukee metropolitan area in which to live and work. The City provides a typical range of
municipal services for a suburban community including police and fire protection,
emergency medical/paramedic, maintenance of streets and other infrastructure, library,
public health services, recreational and cultural activities, building inspection and zoning
control, refuse and recycling collection, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water services
including construction and maintenance. The City is authorized to levy property tax on real
and personal property located within its boundaries to support the services provided.

The City operates under the mayor/council form of government. Policy making and
legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of a mayor and six council
members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring a city attorney. The
City's Mayor is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government and for appointing the
heads of the various departments. The Council is elected, by district, on a non-partisan
basis. The Mayor and Council members serve staggered three-year terms. The City is
organized into departments, headed by fourteen officials appointed by the Mayor or Director
of Administration and confirmed by the Common Council. Numerous boards, commissions
and committees allow for citizen involvement in government by providing a forum for policy
input to the Council and guidance to the departments. Library service is provided through a
separate Library Board that functions like a department of the City and engages the Library
Director. Water service is provided through a separate Water Utility that functions like a
department of the City. These two areas therefore have been included as an integral part of
the City’s financial statements. The City also is financially accountable for a legally separate
Community Development Authority (Authority). The Authority was established to finance
and construct a City Business Park located within the City of Franklin Tax Incremental
Financing District No. 2. The Authority’s activities are reported within the City’'s financial
statements. Additional information on the Authority can be found in Note 1 in the notes fo
the financial statements.

The budgetary process serves as the foundation of the City’s financiai planning and control
system. The objective of the budgetary process is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Common Council.
The preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following year is prepared
during June and July. Departmental requests for personnel changes and new capital outiay
expenditures are made by the middle of August. The Mayor then reviews the forecast
including recommended personne! and capital outlay expenditures and determines by mid
August the personnel and capital outlay expenditures that will be included in the initial
departmental requested budgets. The departments take this information and submit their
requested budgets by the end of August. The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor submits
his recommended budget by the end of September. The Council through its Finance
Committee reviews the recommended budget and submits a proposed budget to the
Council by mid October. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed
budget in early November, and then adopts a final budget in mid November. The adopted
budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g. Public Safety), and department (e.g. Police).
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 15, 2011

Transfers of appropriations between funds, functions or department require the approval of
the governing council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each
governmental fund with an adopted budget. The General Fund comparison is presented in
Exhibit F as part of the basic financial statements for the government funds and in
Schedules 3 & 4 of the supplementary information. For governmental funds other than the
General Fund with adopted budgets, this comparison is presented in the supplementary
information section of this report.

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
considered from the broader perspective of the environment that the City operates.

Economic Condition and OQutlook

The economic activity in Franklin stabilized in 2010 in both the residential and the non-
residential sectors. The 27 units of new residential construction was up 8.0% from 2009 but
90.6% below the 288 units per year averaged during the previous ten years. The value of
non-residential construction increased 58.8% from 2009 but was 49.1% below the average
value realized per year during the previous ten years. Prospects in 2011 for residential,
commercial and industrial development are anticipated to exceed 2010 levels.

Estimated actual property values have grown at an average annual rate of 7.0% since 2000.
The new growth net of TIF Districts was $21.4 million in 2010, $38.2 million in 2009 and
$49.8 million in 2008. The growth in 2011 is expected to be in the $10 million dollar range
reflecting the slowdowns during the last three years. Growth after 2011 is expected to trend
to levels higher than the past few years. The history of higher growth has allowed the City to
maintain a relatively low municipal tax rate while still funding the increased cost of services
required as a result of the City’s growth.

Residential Growth

Over the past ten years, residential valuation has grown at an average annual rate of 6.8%.
In 2010, permits for 27 new equivalent residential units were issued. The increase from the
prior year reflects the continued slow housing market in residential construction. Lingering
effects of the slowdown will keep growth from new construction in 2011 at about the same
level as 2010. Longer range the City remains attractive to builders and potential residents.

Commercial and Industrial Growth

Over the past ten years, commercial and industrial valuation has increased at an average
annual rate of 7.9%. In 2010, 40 building permits were issued for commercial and industrial
projects. The value of those projects increased by 58.8% from the 2009 level.

TIF District #2, the City's Business Park, will be complete in 2011, closed and the $167.5
million in assessed value at January 1, 2010 will be returned to the tax rolls. During its final
year, the remaining debt will be paid off and the final projects completed.

in 2005, two new TIF Districts (#3 & #4) were established on the eastern side of the City.
The two districts have equalized value tax increments of $61 and $36 Million, respectively.

Anticipated residential growth will continue to place demands on the commercial sector for
goods and services that, in turn, is expected to continue the trend of commercial growth.
Expansion of the commercial and industrial tax base is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall tax rate, as 72.2% of the City’s property value is currently residential down from
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Mayor, Commen Council and Citizens
April 15, 2011

73.8% the prior year. Future tax relief will need to come from industrial and commercial tax
base expansion.

Organizational and Service Growth

The 2010 year was a year where overall revenue stabilized for the City. Some revenue
sources remained at the same level as 2009, others actually increased. The one notable
exception was investment earnings which continued to be adversely affected by the
exceptionally low available interest rates. The growth in fund balance was achieved due to
the underspending in approved budgets by departments.

2010 was a City-wide property re-assessment year with overall assessments declining by
3.5%. The last reassessment was done in 2008. Performing revaluations on a regular basis
is in line with the Common Council policy to schedule a revaluation every three years to
keep property values in line with current market values. The State determined that the local
assessments after reassessments were 99.0% of fair value. The estimated actual value of
City properties was approximately $3.6 billion.

The challenge for the operating departments in 2010 was to maintain the service levels at a
time of flat revenues to the City and a growth of 0.6% in new properties. Limited tax growth
did provide resources to maintain existing service levels.

Internal Controls

The City’s internal control structure is subject to ongoing evaluation by management. The
City is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to
ensure compliance with laws, regulations and good financial policies. The results of the
City’s audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal confrol structure or significant violations of applicable laws or
regulations. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, if the level of grant
expenditures exceeds an established level, currently $500,000, a single audit of grants is
required. The City was not required fo have a single audit of grants for 2010 although the
State required limited audit review of their grants received.

Financial Planning

Long range financial planning is in place, especially for the capital funds and debt service
funds, to ensure that resources are in place to meet committed projects and ensure that
there is adequate funding for projects prior to their approval and that adequate funding is in
place for debt that has been or will be incurred, with an appropriate plan for repayment.

Financial Policies

The City maintains policies on fund balance level, debt policy, investment policies, budget
forecasting policy and a capitalization policy. These policies together with conservative
management has resulted in a number of actions that have served the City well. The
existence of a fund balance enabled the fund balance to be utilized in 2009 during the
revenue decline and to be replenished in 2010 when revenue stabilized. Another example
was due to the investment policies in place, funds were safely reallocated to provide some
additional investment return that somewhat muted the decline in investment return that
would have other wise been incurred.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 15, 2011

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2008.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
This was the 17" consecutive year that the City has received this award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.
Such report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements. We will be
submitting the CAFR to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a 2010 Certificate.

Acknowledgments

Preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance Department staff. Appreciation is also
extended to all other City employees who contributed to its preparation. We also thank the
Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Committee for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

(Y. @ |2t

Calvin A. Patterson
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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m Clifton
Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Common Council
City of Frankiin
Franklin, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Frankiin as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, which collectively comprise City of
Eranklin’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of City of Franklin's management. Qur responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year comparative
information for the enterprise funds has been derived from the City of Franklin's 2008 financial
statements and, in our report dated April 16, 2010, we expressed unqualified opinions on the
respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statemnent presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Franklin as of December
31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
15, 2011 on our consideration of City of Franklin's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal contro! over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and shouid be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Mormher of

HLB Internations!
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The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in
the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Franklin’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical tables listed in the table of contents have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%WALA

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April 15, 2011
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

As management of the City of Franklin (City), we offer readers of the City's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter
of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-5 of this report.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2010, by $193,508,767
(net assets). Of this amount, $7,665,103 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

« The City's total net assets increased by a net amount of $9,804,559. Investment in capital
assets, net of related debt increased by $3,510,007, while unrestricted net assets
increased by $2,764,705 and restricted net assets increased by $3,529,847. The
reduction in debt was the primary reason that the investment in capital assets, net of
related debt increased. The unrestricted increase was due to TIF District revenues
exceeding expenses and an increase in the General fund. The restricted increase was
due to an increase in development receipts.

o The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2010, combined ending fund
balances of $22,129,948, an increase of $5,248,006 from the prior year. The increase
was primarily due to the receipt of revenue in the TIF Districts and debt service funds
which was applied to the repayment of debt. There was an (unreserved fund balance) in
total of $5,858,789 made up of a $2,251,592 deficit in the TIF Districts fund and
unreserved fund batances in other funds amounting to $8,110,381 or approximately 37
percent of the total fund balance that is available for spending at the government's
discretion.

o The unreserved fund balance as of December 31, 2010 for the general fund was
$5,381,412 or approximately 22 percent of total anticipated 2011 general fund
expenditures.

e The City's Governmental activities debt decreased by $5,275,000 during 2010 from
scheduled repayments. The total general obligation debt that has to be repaid by the
general taxpayer is less than one quarter of one percent of the City’s equalized valuation.
See table 11 for complete details. '

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes {o the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenditures are reported in this statement for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation and sick leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-like activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, public works, health & human services, culture &
recreation and conservation & development. The business-type activities include the Frankiin
Water Utility and the Sanitary Sewer fund.

The government-wide financial stafements include not only the City itself (known as the
primary government) but also a legally separate Community Development Authority for which
the City is financially accountable. Financial information for this blended component unit is
reported as part of the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A & B of this report.
Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near
ferm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund
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balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains 16 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and TIF Districts
Funds, that are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 13 governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements later in
this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E & F of
this report. These statements include a budgetary comparison of the General Fund.

The City adopts an annua! appropriated budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Library Operating Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street
Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Franklin Water
Utility. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all governmental funds
demonstrating compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds

Proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Frankiin Water Utility, the
Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Internal Service Fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H & | of this report.

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's programs. The
fiduciary funds maintained by the City are the Property Tax Agency Fund, that records the tax
roll and tax collections for the City and other taxing jurisdictions, an other agency fund to
record that activity and a post employment benefits trust to hold funds until needed to pay
designated health benefits for eligible current and future retirees.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K of this report.

Notes to the financial statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements is found on pages 38 — 73 of this report.
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Other information

in addition to the basic financial statements, notes and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required suppiementary information concerning the City of Franklin's
progress in funding its pension obligations to its public works employees and its retiree health
obligations to eligible full time employees. Required supplementary information can be found
on page 74 of this report.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents
combining statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed
budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the
budget complementing the statement included in the basic governmental fund financial
statements, and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information. Schedules 1 to 11.2 can be found on
pages 75 — 91 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $193,508,767 and
$183,704,208 at the end of 2010 and 20089, respectively.

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET ASSETS
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and
other assets $ 56800283 § 52453201 § 47328009 § 4,261,888 $ 61128202 § 56715179
Capital assets 115,673,509 115,276,159 90,202,124 90,828,559 205,875,633 206,104,718
Total assets 172,473,792 167,729,450 94,530,133 95,090,447 267,003,925 262,819,897
Current liabilities 38,811,740 37,222,328 1,225,744 1,078,700 40,037,484 38,301,028
Long-term liabilities 33,380,871 40,734 583 76,803 80,078 33,457,674 40,814,661
Total liabilities 72,192,611 77,956,911 1,302,547 1,158,778 73,495,158 79,115,689
Net assets:
Invested in capital
assets , net of
related debt 90,592,480 86,456,038 90,202,124 90,828,559 180,794,604 177,284,597
Restricted 4,787,208 1,291,825 261,852 227,388 5,049,060 1,519,213
Unrestricted 4,901,493 2,024 676 2,763,610 2,875722 7,665,103 4,900,388

Total netassets $ 100,281,181 § 89772539 § 93,227 586 $ 93931660 § 193508767 § 183704208
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The largest portion of the City's net assets (approximately 93 and 96 percent, in 2010 and
2009, respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery,
and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these net
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

Investment in capital assets accounted for $180,794,604 and $177,284,597 in 2010 and
2009, respectively of the year end net assets. The changes in capital assets were as follows:

Net Change
Capital Asset in Capital Net
Additions Depreciation Related Debt Increase

2010 $ 4,298,852 $ (4,527,937) $ 3,739,002 § 3,510,007
2009 $ 6,515,153 $ (4,242,863) $ 10,160,146 § 12,432,436

The major City project contributing to this increase was the reconstruction of 51 Street from
Drexel to Puetz Road. This project was accomplished through a State stimulus project. In
2009 the reconstruction of Drexel Avenue from 27" Street to 31* Street, the reconstruction of
Fire Station #3 and increased road resurfacing due to the low price of asphalt. In addition the
debt repayments resulted in a significant decrease in capital related debt.

Infrastructure contributed by developers and others contributed to the capitalized
infrastructure through; capital grants and contributions of governmental activities of
approximately $1,455,000 in 2010 and $351,000 in 2009 and through capital grants and
contributions for business-type activities of $211,000 in 2010 and $568,000 in 2009.

An additional portion of the City's net assets (2.6 percent and 0.8 percent in 2010 and 2009,
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
used. There were $5,049,060 and $1,519,213, respectively in those net assets that were
restricted to specific purposes with the remaining balance in unrestricted net assets of
$7.665,103 and $4,900,398, in 2010 and 2009 respectively that may be used to meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current and prior fiscal
years the City was able to report positive balances in the unrestricted net assets of the
government as a whole as well as for its separate business-type activities.

There was a 2010 increase of $3,529,847 in restricted net assets reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The increase was primarily due to the increase in available
Development funds.

There was a 2009 decrease of $4,444,255 in restricted net assets reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in available debt
service funds ($1,915,000), additional interfund advances ($2,645,000), and lesser changes
in other restricted funds.
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There was a 2010 increase of $2,764,705 in unrestricted net assets reported in government-
wide activities. The major reasons for the increase were the approximate net increases in TIF
Districts funds of $3,500,000 and in the general fund of$400,000.

There was a 2009 decrease of $2,317,663 in unrestricted net assets reported in connection
with government-wide activities. The major reasons for the decrease was the use of funds for
debt service purposes ($2,645,000) and the reduction in the general fund ($440,403) due to
using net assets to ease the transition to fully funding the OPEB obligations and in
encountering the shortfall in budgetary revenue of about $1,000,000.

Government-wide activities
The details of changes in net assets follow:

City of Franklin Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ending December 31, 2010 and 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activiies Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenue
Program revenue:

Charges for services $ 4149847 $ 3317477 $ 7457,755 $ 7448519 § 11607602 $ 10,76599

Operating grants & contributions 1,921,805 2,080,213 - - 1,921,805 2,080,213

Capital grants & contributions 2,570,564 1,190,080 210,668 337,667 2,781,232 1,527,757
General revenue:

Propesty taxes _ 27,881,525 24,966,591 - - 27,881,525 24,966,591

Other taxes 699,431 666,767 - - 699,431 666,767

Intergovernmental 1,485,982 1,380,418 - - 1,485,082 1,380,418

Investment earnings 907,723 1,401,560 41,393 46,738 949,116 1,448,298

Cther 58,885 43 566 50,164 57 627 109,049 101,193

Total revenue 39,675,762 35,046,682 7,759,980 7,890,551 47,435,742 42 937,233

BExpenses:

General govemment 2,897 491 2,948,713 - - 2,897 491 2,948,713

Public safety 16,003,898 15,526,031 - - 16,003,898 15,526,031

Public works ) 6,208,391 6,034,720 - - 6,208,391 6,034,720

Health & human senices 698,944 708,084 - _ - 698,944 708,084

Cutture & recreation 1,919,689 1,780,896 - - 1,819,682 1,780,896

Conservation & development 520,833 572,342 - - 529,833 572,342

Interest on longtemn debt 1,920,023 2,253,215 - - 1,920,023 2,253,215

Water - - 4,076,409 4,216,453 4,076,409 4,216,453

Sewer - - 3,376,505 3,226 261 3,376,506 3,226,261

Total expenses 30,178,268 29,824 001 7,452,914 7442714 37,631,183 37,266,715

Increase in net assets

before transfers 9,497 493 5,222,681 307,066 447 837 9,804,559 5,670,518
Transfers 1,011,149 (100Q,726) (1,011,149) 100,726 - -
%e in net assets 10,508,642 5,121,955 (704,083) 548,563 9,804,559 5,670,518
Net assets - beginning 89,772,532 84,650,584 93,931,669 93,383,106 183,704,208 178,033,690
Net assels - ending $ 100,281,181 §$ 89772539 $ 03227586 $ 93831669 $ 193508767 $ 183.,704.208
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Governmental activities in 2010 increased the City's net assets by $10,508,642 accounting
for 89 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City. Elements of this increase
follow:

» |ncrease due to General Fund activity of $397,984

Net increase in Debt service activities of $1,753,805

Increase in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $397,350

Net decrease from internal service activities of $99,635

Net decrease from special assessment activities of $353,793

Net increase from TIF Districts activities of $7,017,398

Increase due to Development activities of $569,264

Increase due to Utility Improvement activities of $209,481

Increase due to Capital Improvement activities of $343,455

Increase due to Street Improvement activities of $200,234

Net increase from other funds activities of $73,099

Governmental activities in 2009 increased the City's net assets by $5,121,955 accounting for
91 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City. Elements of this increase follow:
» Decrease due to General Fund activity of $457,019

Increase due to the decrease in Long term Debt of $1,737,327

Increase in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $2,286,217
increase due to the increase from TIF District activities of $2,744,498

Net increase from internal service activities of $678,445

Net increase from special assessment activities of $21,409

Decrease due to Capital Improvement activities of $991,330

Decrease due to Street Improvement activities of $704,633

Net decrease from other funds activities of $192,959

Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities

$18,000,000 ]
$16,000,000 -
$14,000,000 -
$12,000,000
$10,000,000 4
$8,000,000
$6,000,000 -
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$2,897 491 16,003,698 6,208,391 698,944 1,919,689 529,833 1,920,023
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

Charges for services
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Business-type activities
In 2010, business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $704,083 or .7 percent
from the prior year. The key elements of this decrease follow:

The increase from operating activities (the change in net assets excluding capital
contributions and its related depreciation expense) was $380,183. The goal of the
business activities is to provide these services at a break even basis to minimize the cost
to the users. Both the water and sewer activities are currently meeting this goal.
Contributions of water infrastructure - $133,576 consisting of four developer projects and
one City project

Contributions of sewer infrastructure - $79,309 consisting of two developer projects
Depreciation expense related to contributed assets - $1,297,151

In 2009, business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $548,563 or .6 percent
from the prior year. The key elements of this increase follow:

The increase from operating activities (the change in net assets excluding capital
contributions and its related depreciation expense was $298,673. The goal of the
business activities is to provide these services at a break even basis to minimize the cost
to the users. The sewer revenue remains below the level necessary to meet this goal.
Contributions of water infrastructure - $1,336,229 consisting of three developer projects
and three City projects

Contributions of sewer infrastructure - $25,444 consisting of one developer projects
Depreciation expense refated to contributed assets - $1,111,783

The following graph compares the 2010 charges for services to the operating expenses for
water and sewer activities.

Page 18



Operating Revenue and Expense - Business-type Activities
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Water and Sewer expenses can exceed revenue due to the current policy of including only
depreciation from City spending on capital assets in the rate formula. The large amount of
new infrastructure that has been installed in recent years is the reason for this policy. When
maintenance and replacement costs increase, this policy may need to be reevaluated.

As shown on the following chart, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and

contributions, investment earnings and miscellaneous income in addition to charges for
services {operating revenue).

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds.

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscai year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $22,129,948, an increase of $5,248,006 in comparison with the prior
year. At year end there was unreserved fund balance in total of $5,858,789. Of this total
unreserved fund balance, the following amounts were committed to specific types of
activities: i.e., $5,381,412 for general fund activities, $179,224 for special revenue fund
activities, $2,549,745 for capital project activities offset by a $2,551,592 deficit in TIF Districts
activities. The TIF Districts deficit is due to the favorable type of interim financing selected
and will diminish as revenue is received and used to repay the financing.

The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay debt service ($8,393,278), 2) for
advances to other funds ($4,263,000) 3) for development purposes ($2,145,826), 4) for
library purposes ($488,302), 5) uncompleted contracts ($155,000), 8) encumbrances
($72,000) and 7) prepaid expenses, inventories, utility improvement, donations and grants
($753,753).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of December 31, 2010, the total
fund balance of the general fund was $5,476,585 of which $5,381,412 was unreserved. This
unreserved fund balance represents approximately 22% of 2011 general fund expenditures.

The total fund balance of the general fund increased by $371,947 in fiscal year 2010. The
2010 annual. program budget for the City's general fund identified an appropriation of
$900,000 in fund balance to reduce the impact of taxes levied and to balance the budget.
Actual expenses were less than budgeted expenses by 2.2 percent or $534,235 and actual
revenue was more than budget revenue in the general fund by $90,212 or 0.4 percent. This
resulted in the fund balance increasing by $371,947. The underexpenditures were mainly from
vacancy in authorized positions and unused contingency. '

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $3,021,278, $233,278 is reserved for the
payment of debt service and $2,788,000 is reserved for advances made to the TIF Districts
fund. The fund balance increase of $942,378 was planned to allow the repayment of $1.17
million in interfund advances in connection with the calling of 2010 and 2011 debt to better
utilize available liquid assets.
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The TIF Districts Fund has an unreserved fund deficit of $2,251,592 and a reserved fund
balance of $8,207,000 for a net fund balance of $5,955,408. The fund deficit is due to
borrowing and investing those funds in infrastructure. The fund balance is due to an $8.16
million note receivable issued under a development agreement and some contractual
obligations.

The Nonmajor Government Funds have a total fund balance of $7,676,677. The fund
balance increase came mainly from increases in the Capital funds as resources were
received and very few projects were undertaken resuiting in the fund balances increasing.

The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Utility at the end of the year amounted to $1,988,848, an
increase of $231,855 from December 31, 2009. Total net assets declined due the low level of
activity being less than the depreciation incurred.

Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to
$774,762, a decrease of $343,967 from December 31, 2009. Total net assets declined due
the low level of activity resulting in capital contributions being less than the depreciation on
contributed assets. '

The enterprise funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H and | of this report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budgetary revenues exceeded the budget with a small increase over budget in a number of
issues offsetting a larger ($168,794) decline in interest revenue due to low rates available.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $534,235. This amount was
across all functions with, Administration, police, dispatch and highway departments
accounted for the largest portion of the under expenditures. The unused contingency budget
was $49,042. There were overexpenditures in fire, street lighting, weed conirol, and
insurance budgets.

Revenue was budgeted flat with the prior year and was realized. Expenditures came in below

budget and below the underspending goal resulting in the general fund balance increasing by
$371,947.

Capital assets.

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2010, amounts to $205,875,633 net of accumulated depreciation. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and
machinery and equipment.
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City's Investment in Capital Assets

Govemnmentat Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 24695045 $ 24664244 § 521,225 § 429884 § 25216270 § 25,094,128
Buildings and

Improvements 23,997,831 23,924 476 2,322,250 2,322,250 26,320,081 26,246,726
Improvements

other than buildings 87,929,115 85,791,859 106,835,026 106,500,217 194,764,141 192,292,076
Machinery and

and equipment 15,702,981 14,934,355 2,663,445 2,535,712 18,266,426 17,470,067
Construction

in process 52,225 151,662 643,841 56,229 696,066 207,891

Total capital assets 152,377,197 149 466,586 112,885,787 111,844,292 265,262,984 261,310,888
Less Accumulated

depreciation {36,703,688) (34,190,437) (22,683,663) (21,015,733) (69,387.351) (55,206,170)
Capital assets net of

depreciation $ 115673508 § 115276169 § 90,202,124 § 90,828,559 $ 205875633 § 206,104,718

The total decline in the City's net investment in capital assets net of depreciation for the
current fiscal year was $229,085 or a 0.1 percent decrease due to the lower level of new
additions.

For further details on capital asset activity. refer to Note 1(D)5 and Note 4(D) of the Notes to
Financial Statements and Schedules 11 —-11.2.

Long-term debt

At December 31, 2010, the City had general obligation note and bond issues outstanding
totaling $39,890,000. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a
governmental entity may issue up to 5 percent of its total equalized valuation. The current
debt limitation for the City is $183,525,435. The City's current outstanding general obligation
debt is 22% of the statutory debt limit. In the last 15 years the City has not exceeded 34% of
the statutory debt limit.

The City’s present rating from Moody's for its general obiigation debt is "Aat".

The Franklin Water Utility has no debt outstanding. The Board of Water Commissioners
intention is to generally avoid debt by maintaining and building cash and investments and
from time to time making improvements to its rate structure. The utility’s plan is to make
future infrastructure improvements including water main replacement and new water service
from current reserves and from City collected impact fees.
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City of Franklin’s Outstanding Debt (All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
General obligation
Notes $ 30,160,000 $ 35285000 % - § - $ 30,160,000 % 35,285,000
Bonds 9,730,000 9,880,000 - - 9,730,000 9,880,000
Total $ 39,890,000 §$ 45165000 3% - 8 - § 39,890,000 $ 45,165,000

Additional information of the City's long-term debt can be found in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and
Tables 10 — 13 in the statistical section of the report.

Other Changes of Significance

New L.andfill Siting Agreement

The City of Franklin entered into a new landfill siting agreement with Waste Management of
Wisconsin, Inc. The agreement will allow the company to expand the existing landfill. When
the landfill expansion begins to accept waste the City and other affected municipalities will
begin to receive a siting payment. The company provided upfront payments in 2010 and
2011 of $450,000. The actual payments will be made on a per ton basis when waste is
accepted and the upfront payments will reduce the amounts received. The ultimate amount
that may be received is dependent upon the a ruling that the company receives from the
State DNR as to how much area can be incorporated in the landfill.

Post Employment Health Care Benefits

The City of Franklin provides retiree health care benefits to certain retiree groups from the
date of retirement until age 65. Prior to 2008 the City’s portion of health care cost was
recognized as expenditure in the period premiums were paid. Funding for those costs was
provided out of the current operating budget of the City. This was referred to as financing on
a pay as you go basis.

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the
City of Franklin on January 1, 2008 that said that the expense of these benefits has to be
recognized over the working lives of the empioyees. The Common Council concluded that
the City of Franklin should not only recognize the expense on its financial statements but
should fund those amounts out of its general revenue starting in 2008 with the establishment
of a section 115 trust. The actuarial computed annuai required contribution under GASB #45
for 2010 was $793,852 and for 2009 was $591,351. The increase was due to enhanced
benefits negotiated with the represented employees of the Police Department.

More detailed information can be found in footnote 5C.

Page 23



Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets

« The unemployment rate as of December 31, 2010 for the City was 5.8%, Milwaukee
County which includes the City, is 8.1%. This compares with an unemployment rate of
7.5% for the State of Wisconsin.

e The local tax rate change for operations for the current and prior two years were 0.3%,
1.50%, and 3.18%, respectively.

« The tax levy increase for the current and prior two years were, $284,000, $587,000 and
$1,054,000, respectively.

« The 2011 budgets require a local tax rate that increases 1.99% which together with
growth will result in a tax levy increase of $539,000 or 2.6%.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the Director of Finance & Treasurer, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wi 53132.

General information or more detailed financial and budget information relating to the City of
Franklin can be found at the City’s website, www.franklinwi.gov - Finance Department tab.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2010

Exhibit A

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts receivable
interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Note receivable
Special assessments receivable
internal balances
Due from other goverhments
Prepaid ifems
Inventories
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
L.and
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Improvements other than buildings
Construction in progress
Deferred charges

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Accrued interest
Special deposits
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for
Library
Utility improvements
Development
Donations & grants
Sewer equipment replacement
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 17,202,704 1,850,110 $ 19,061,814
762,074 1,948,675 2,710,749
53,040 - 53,040
28,163,266 280,550 28,443,816
8,160,000 - 8,160,000
1,923,984 - 1,823,984
22,178 (22,178) -
278,309 - 278,309
57,134 - 57,134
29,970 - 29,970
- 261,852 261,852
24,695,045 521,225 25,216,270
17,072,816 1,446,848 18,519,664
6,435,590 1,079,407 7,514,997
67,417,833 86,510,803 153,928,636
52,225 643,841 696,066
147,624 - 147,624
172,473,792 94,530,133 267,003,925
1,117,616 1,163,466 12,281,082
662,871 15,805 678,676
74,012 - 74,012
528,457 - 528,457
297,009 2,600 299,608
28,162,022 - 28,162,022
7,969,753 43,873 8,013,626
33,380,871 76,803 33,457,674
72,192 611 1,302,547 73,495,158
90,592 480 ' 90,202,124 180,794,604
498 483 - 498,483
356,798 - 356,798
3,620,826 - 3,620,826
311,101 - 311,101
- 261,852 261,852
4,901,493 2,763,610 7,665,103
$100,281,181 $ 93,227,586 $ 193,508,767

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit C
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2010

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6144074 3 233,278 % 1,064,575 $ 6,341,056 $ 14,682,983
Receivables
Accounts receivable 568,166 - 7,084 126,106 701,366
Interest receivable - - 53,040 - 53,040
Taxes receivable 17,004,057 2,165,647 6,737,305 2,256,257 28,163,266
Note receivable - - 8,160,000 - 8,160,000
Special assessments receivable - 557,649 - 1,366,335 1,823,984
Due from other funds 22,178 - - - 22,178
Due from other governments 12,288 - 127,173 138,848 278,309
Prepaid items 45,703 - - 11,431 57,134
Inventories 29,970 - - - 29,970
Long term advances - 2,788,000 - 1,475,000 4,263,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 23826436 $ 5744574 $ 17049187 § 11,715,033 § 58335230
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable . 3 651,062 3% - 3 25434 $ 410,848 $ 1,087,344
Accrued liabilities 324,955 - 15,000 4,916 344,871
Pue to other governments 74,012 - - - 74,012
Special deposits 297,008 - - - 297,009
Deferred revenue 17,002,813 2,723,286 6,790,345 3,622,592 30,139,046
Long ferm advances - - 4,263,000 - 4 263,000
Total Liabilities 18,349,851 2,723,296 11,093,779 4,038,356 36,205,282
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Inventories and prepaid items 75,673 - - 10,181 85,854
Advances to other funds - 2.788,000 - 1,475,000 4,263,000
Encumbrances 19,500 - - 52,500 72,000
Contractual obligations - - 47,000 108,000 155,000
Debt service - 233,278 8,160,000 - 8,393,278
Library services - - - 488,302 488,302
Utility improvements - - - 356,798 356,798
Development - - - 2,145,826 2,145,826
Donations & grants - - - 311,101 311,101
Unreserved balance (deficit) reported in:
General Fund 5,381,412 - - - 5,381,412
Special Revenue Funds - - - 179,224 179,224
Capital Project Funds - - (2,251,692) 2,549,745 298,153
Total fund balances 5,476,585 3,021,278 5,955,408 7,676,677 22,129,948
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 23826436 $ 5744574 $ 17,049,187 $ 11715033 $ 58,335,230
Total fund balances of governmental funds $ 22,129,948
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in government funds are not financial resources and are not reported in the funds. 115,673,509
Internal service net asseis 2,232,157
Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and are deferred in the funds. 1,977,024
Long-term liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current period '
and are not reported in the funds. (41,731,457)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 100,281,181

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Exhibit D

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Special assessments
Intergovernmental charges for setvices
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds

$ 16,742,784 $ 1,900,000 $ 7,536,172 $ 2,402,000 $ 28,580,956

2,511,258 - 690,577 502,324 3,704,159

729,432 - - - 729,432

422 506 - - - 422,506

1,838,076 - ' - 373,043 2,211,119

- 227,560 - 891,670 1,119,230

237,319 - - - 237,319

226,206 257,087 201,461 194,224 878,978

185,265 - - 412,346 597 811

22,892 846 2,384,647 8,428,210 4,775,60? 38,481,310

2,694 374 - - - 2,694,374

15,142,907 - - 63,410 15,206,317

4,521,991 - - - 4,521,991

628,052 - - 1,447 629,499

136,758 - - 1,428,335 1,565,093

386,183 - 27,502 111,020 524,705

- - 209,713 1,744,286 1,953,899

- 850,000 4,425,000 - 5,275,000

- 757,023 1,182,739 - 1,839,762

23,510,265 1,607,023 5,844,954 3,348,498 34,310,740

(617,419) 777,624 2,583,256 1,427,109 4,170,570

- - - 64,070 64,070

1,013,366 164,754 - 211,534 1,389,654
{24,000) - {45,108) (307,180) (376,288)

371,947 942,378 2,538,148 1,395,633 5,248,006

5,104,638 2,078,900 3,417,260 5,281,144 16,881,942

$ 5476585 $ 3,021,278

$ 5955408 %

7,676,677 §$§ 22,129,948

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit £

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 5,248,006

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (page 26) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays ($1,779,422) was exceeded by depreciation ($2,837,502)
in the current period. (1,058,080)

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues in the
statement of activities. 1,455,430

The issuance of long-term debt ( e.g. notes, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds. Neither transaction, however,has
any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of differences
in the treatment of long term debt. 5,275,000

Government funds report the effects of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of the differences in the
treatment of these items. (49,340)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in the government funds 95,116

Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as

revenue in the statement of activities (357,855)
Internal service fund change in net assets (99,635}
Net change in net assets of governmental activities $ 10,508,642

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary basis)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Exhibit F

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety

Public works

Heaith and human services

Culture and recreation

Conservation and development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over {under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis

Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2010 encumbrances
2009 encumbrances

Net change in fund balance - generaily
accepted accounting principles basis

Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 17,684,000 $ 17,684,000 $ 17,756,150 $ 72,150
2,463,000 2,472,000 2,511,258 39,258
678,650 678,650 729,432 50,782
400,000 400,000 422 506 22,506
1,834,450 1,834,450 1,838,076 3,626
250,000 250,000 237,319 (12,681)
395,000 395,000 226,206 (168,794)
101,900 101,900 185,265 83,365
23,807,000 23,816,000 23,906,212 90,212
3,401,561 2,887,061 2,694 374 192,687
15,381,927 15,304,927 15,146,407 158,520
4 655,547 4,643,547 4 536,991 106,556
638,283 638,283 628,052 10,231
176,175 176,175 160,758 15417
453,507 437,007 386,183 50,824
24,707,000 24,087,000 23,552,765 534,235
(900,000) (271,000) 353,447 624,447
(900,000) (271,000) 353,447 624 447
19,500 19,500 19,500 -
(1,000) (1,000) (1,000) -
(881,500) {252,500) 371,947 624,447
5,104,638 5,104,638 5,104,638 -
$ 4223138 $ 4,852,138 $ 5476585 $ 624,447

Page 30



L& ebed

panuijuos
6Z1'085'C G92'9/5'v6 vo0€cZ Ly 9BL'L6LLY LL1'8L6' LY B9V ¥8E LY sjasse [ejoL
- 9.6'cor'06 88€'695'GY 71 G69°GY 6550676 GEB'89L VY S]osse JUSLINJUOU [BjoL
- 57120206 0008ecSy  6B8CEerSy 695 08¥ Sy GES'BOLYY (uonetoaidap psje|nndde
Jo jou ) sjesse [ended [elo]
- (Gog'caozz)  (csovoror)  (ozescoth) (0s9'tigiol)  (eve'sy9't 1) uonernaldap pajenwnioe sso7
- 1¥8'er9 002'/2 £20'009 62062 gL8'cy sseiboid ul uoponsuoD
- Shr'£96'C Z00'vE9 202299 0LL'LO6 L €¥Z' 106l juswidinbs pue Ataulyoei
- 9z0'sE8'90L  L00'9LL'ES 698'GGZ'€S oLz'vee'es 1G1'6.5'€S sBuipiing uey} Jayio sjuswaosdu]
- 062'226°C G/1'26G'L G/1'288°L §/0'0€L 6.0'0eL sjuetuenosdwi pue sbulping
- §ze'1es 699'C1L€ Obe'8%e GLZ' 2Ll G88'29l pue
sjesse [ejded
- 258192 88¢g'222 268’192 - - sjesse pajouisal [ejo L
- 269'192 886,22 268192 - - SJUSWSOAU| pUB UYSED PajoL)saY
S}OSSE JUSLINDUON
821'085'C 68224 L'V 9/9'/69'L GGO'96Y 'L 865'/8¥'CT ¥£8'618'2 SJOSSE Jualnd [Bj0L
- ¥S6'cT €8l 'st ¥G6'ET - - spuny Jaylo wolj sng
- 055082 £9z'ovl £9¢'8LL 165'TS1 /81291 2{qeAl903] sexe |
80.'09 GL9'8y6’| ges'els 1G1'958 199°080'L 815'260°) 9|qeAIS0al SIUN0IJY
so|(eAlaIy
Lz2BLe'Z ¢ OLL'eS8't  $ G6E'TS9 L8l 86y 00S'vSZ'L ¢ 62Z6'09¢'L SIUSLUISBAUI pUe Yse)
S}eSSE JU2LND
s13ssv
spun. a91AI9g s|ejol Jea ) Jolld Jea) juauing lea ) 10lUd lea ) ua4dng
[eusaju| lea) Jamag lemag Anan annn
- SaIAIOY uany Aiejueg Aejueg JOJeAN J9)EAN
[EJUSLILIBADE) spun4 osudidajul - SaRIAROY adh)-ssauisng

(6002 ‘1€ JoquiadaQ 10} uopjewliojut aAgeledwon yum)
0L0Z ‘1€ 1equadag
spun4 Arejaridold
$19SSY JON jO JUswalels
NITMNVYYA 40 ALID

O JIqitx3



Z¢ abed

‘SjusWelels |eloueUly 8y} 0} sejou BuiAuedwoooe aag

JerZec e ¢ 080/22€6% ZLL¥BOOF & €06'69Y9F $ CGSLPT LY $ €89USL9F § sjessejeu [ejo]
151'ceT’e 01L9€9.2 622'8L1L°L 29L'vlL £66'06.°L 8¥8'886'L pajousaiun
- 268'192 88c'/ZZ 768192 - - juswaoeldal juswdinbs Jomas
10§ pejoLsey
- ¥Z1'202'06 000'8ec'sy g8z 'cel st BGG'067'SY G£8'89/ v sjasse {e)ided Ul pa)saauy|
"$138SY 13N
z.2'8ye 629'8¥E’1L 1¥6'8ES £68'LZ. G95'0€. 98/'929 saflligel ejo L
- £08'92 6E€0'0F €09°'9¢ 6E00F 0020 SSNHICel] JusunauouU [BjoL
- £08'9.L 600V £09'9¢ 600V 002’0 ssoussqe pajesuadwiod peniady
seljjiqe]] JUSLNJUON
2leave 9/8'1/2'1L 806'86¥ 067'689 925°069 985'986 SSlliqe| Jus.LInd [B10L
- c/aCh acL'oz gel'er 8c1'0z 8e1'0z seoussqe pajesuadwon jo uoiod Jusund
- 0092 - - 0002 0092 susodep |etoads
- zZel'ov - - ¥£2'0LL ZeL'or spuny J8yjo o} ang
000'8lE G08'Sl 919'6 L96'El #00°S Pr8'l saljljlgel| psniody
z.Z'0E g9op'c9l'L ¥SL'60Y 65" 1¥9 059'76S z.8'616 a|qeAed sjunodoy
sallijigel Jusuny
s3angavii
sSpun4 adAl9g sjejol dea ) lolld JBa ) Juauny lea ) Jolld Jea) jualing
[eusoju| Jeep lameg lamog Amn funn
- SHYANIY aLny Aiejlueg Alejiueg J9IBAN J3JEAA
[eJUBLIUISADE) spund asudiajuz - saliAaYy adAj-ssaulsng
{(600Z ‘1€ 19qWi299(J0} UOTIEWLIOU] SAJRIEdWOD YIM)
010z ‘1€ 1equsdaq
spund Arejadoad
§)9SSY JaN JO Juswalels
NIMYNYYA 40 ALID
(papnPuos)

O HqIuxg



gg abed

‘SjuUSLIBIE]S [BIDUeLl By} 0} sajou Buifueduwoode sag

161'2e2'e $ O8G[cCEBS ZLLPBOOF $ £0669V Oy $ TSGIVCir § €BOULSLOF $ Bujpus - sjesse JaN
ZBL'1EE'2 500'1€6'c6  BEB LSOV 2L1¥89'0F 8oL'LE6'oY 285 1vZ Ly Buiuuibaq - sjesse 19N
{5e0'66) (e80't04) (128'291) (rLZ'vLz) ¥8E'9LL (598'68Y) syosse Jou Ul abuey)
- (aogc10’l)  Wwloe {7062} {8997026) 6SF0L0E) N0 slgjsued |
- - - - - - U s1aysuel |
- Ge8'zle hi'6T 60£'6. 622'9¢€'L 9/6'cgl SuoIINQUILCD [eyde)
(5£9'66) 96€'06 (159'061) {(919'062) 1Z8'00¢ vL0'28€ sI9jsuel) pue
sSuoRNGUIUCD [ejded alojaqg ($s0|) 2Wodu|
10828 16616 985'LYy £0¥'cT (260'5€) #5189 (sesuadxa) anusaas Bunjesado-uou {2101
- - - - (L2876} - paucpuege Auadoid uo ssoT
- #9105 G¥S'LL glE'G 780'0% 08.'vy Apung
108'2¢ £68°LY L¥0'P2 5208l /B9'TT 89£°cT sfullies Jusu}saAu|
(SISNIAXT) FNNIATY ONILVEIdO-NON
(zvv'zel) L¥8'y (lez'zee) (6LOVLE) €L6'SEE 0988LE {sso]) swooul Bugesado
88£'00.'S vL82SY L L9z'92e'c 506’9/’ Z8S'8LL'Y 6079207 sosuadxe Buielado [gjoL
- 78169 ¥zZ'she gLL'L¥T 12828y 82.°05F UOIBJIISIURUPY
- Ger'069'L 00L'€¥9 670'6F0 ooe'ces o8e'1v0'L uopetosideq
88€'00.'¢ z£9'020'S 1£8'78€'T gec'o8t'e 1962082 PeT'¥88'e $30IAISS PUE SI|es JO 1500
SASNAJXI ONILVYELO
ov6'/95'E GGL'ISK' L ¥20'766'C 98%'290'e S6Y PGt ¥ 69C'G6E ¥ anuaaaj Buijessdo [ejol
- SLO'V6 ove'6e £98°0% 800°st Z51'ES Jaylo pue sefjeusd ‘SJUNOISIp paliaHod
- 0£5'SEL - - Shl'vLL 0£G'GLL 22IA198 Uoioajold all S1EAld
- £vG'9ES - - 082645 £P59es aoIMes uoljosjold 3l oignd
- 0gg'lL - - (z6lL'S) 0ee’L $9jes palejswun
9v6'295'¢ - - - - - safiieyo |euap B yjleay dnoio
- LE€°01L2'9 89'PS6'C £79'120'¢ £0.'02.'€ v1.'888'¢ se|es palejau [Bjol
- 6682V v1£'62T 980'¥61 €1Li'v0e £17'992 Auoyine agngd
- zZ1L9'69¥ Z0S'9¥2 20¥'29Z 016'681 §0Z'20C (euysnpu|
- 068°9r6’L 0cv'618 69¢°'L18 ¥9Z'80L'L LZG'GEL'L [e1oJawa)
- 9/6'0£8'¢c gep'ego’l ¢ 192'€ssL ¢ 0LP8LL'Z § SLTLL0T fepuap|say
sgjes palalay
ANNIATY ONILYHALO
Spungd J2IAleg Siejol Jedj 0Lld Jea) Jualng Jea) Jolid Jea) jualngd
lewtajuf les) 18mag 1aMag Amnn Asn
- SBIHANOY wakngy Alejuesg Lejueg 9B B
[ejuaLIBA0D) spund osudiojug - saplanoy adAj-ssauisng

(6002 ‘L€ Jequiaas( popuse Jeak ay} Joj uopjernosl aaneledwon Yim)
0102 ‘L€ 12quede papug les)
spun4 Alejajidoid
s)ossy JaN pund ul saBuey) pue sasuadxy ‘enuaiay Jo Juslielels
NITMNVY4 30 ALID
Hapa



e affied

‘sjusWalE]s [Bloueuly sy} o} sejou Buihueduwioooe 9sg

panuiuoes
12.6162 ¢ ¢980ZL'c$ £826.8 $ €£0'09L $¢ 00cpSZ'L & 62609l
- 258'192 88¢'/2¢ 258'192 - - paJoLISaY - SUBWIISOAU| PUB USED
1Z/616'T & O0LL'6S8'L$ GBEZGO  $ 18L'86F ¢ Qoevse'L ¢ 626°00¢L  $ pajol}saIUN - SUSLUIS3AU| pUB YseDd
226162 & 2960¢i'2$ €£8/6/8 $ €£009. ¢ oocvsZ'l § 6Z609¢L $ : Bujpus - sjuajeA|nba Ysed pue Yyse
00218 £80'¥ElL'T  988'0L9 €8/'6.8 LLO'BLL'L 00EYSZ'L Buluuiiag - sjus|eainbs Yseo pue ysed
LL2'204 (zL'el) 168'89¢ (0G2'611) £82'G. £29'901 sjus|eAinba yseo pue
yseo uj (asealoap) asealoul IsN
108°2¢ €6 LY LT GZ0'8}) 16922 89g£'cZ sBuiules Jusw)saAl|
000°009 - - - - - awAedal spuny Jaylo 0] sadUeApY
SIILIALLOY ONILSIANI NO¥S SMOT4 HSVD
- (S117158) (£66'09) (161'659) (8/Z'8cl) (vze's6l) sjosse [epden Jo uonisinboy
SIILIALLOY ONIDONYNIZ A3Lv1ay
ANV TVLidVD INO¥d SMOTd HSYD
- (gog’cl0’L)  (#192) (£06'27) {(999'026) (6G¥'0LO'L) Jus|eAinba xe} 1o} pied - IO J9jSuel |
SIILIAILOV ONIONVNId
IVLIdYINON WNOH4 SMOTd HSYD
01669 796'608°L  £9t'80¢€ £Z£'0ZS 0ES'LLL'L ¥¥9'682°L senianoe bugesado
Aq popiaoid smoj Useo 12N
(0ot'98l) (006'66) (00Z'¢8) {006'66) (00Z'cB) pasn SadIAIeS punpsiul (0} sjuslAed
- (gee'eL6) (62 86Y) (z24'20%) (€GG'LLS) {(965'GoP) saafojduie 0] sjuaWAed
(666'07S ) (z6L'z1S'y)  (06e'196°1)  (9¥L'Te6')) (196'629'7)  (9¥0'085'2) siaiddns 0} sjuswied
- 891'¥82 0L8'C orlL'e e TA WA LA 8Z0'18¢ papircid sa0lAIas punpall o} sjdisoay
698'0L0'c & 6122612 ¢ zZEL'cog'z ¢ 10E'0SO'  § zek'soL'y § sivivly 8 $J9SN puE S$1aWoisnod woyy sidisdey
STILIALLOV ONILYHAJO WONL SMO1d HSYD
spung adjaleg sjejyol Jeaj lold JED ) JUALND Jea ) loldd Jea ) jualing
[eusayul Jeop Jamag lomag Ainn Amnn
- S3IAROY uaung Aejueg Aejues 191BAA J8Jep
[ejUILIBADD spung espdisjug - oAy adAi-ssaujsng

RGIE]

(600 ‘L€ 19qW999Q PIPUS JESK BY} JO} UOPEWIOJU] SARRIBAUIOD UIM)
0L0Z ‘LS Jaquasa( papus Jea )

spung Alejaudoad
SMO|] 1}seD Jo Judalels
NITMNVYY4 4O ALID



ge abed

‘gJUSUIS]E]S [B1oueUY 8y} o} sajou Buifuedwoooe seg

- $ ¢88'Cie $ Phb'GC $ 60c6.L ¢ 62295e’l & 9/S'EEl $ seiped [eusaixs Aq
pasueyy Jo/pue pafelsul jueld AN 40 180D
sapIAloY |ejdes YseduoN
016'69 ¢ /966081 $ €oysoc § £2e0zs  $ 0ES LI 1L ¢ vvo'ese’t $ sagiAnoe Bujelado
Aq papiarosd smojj Used JoN
25£'20¢ 9z1's08'1 00/ °0%S Zre'vES L1962 ¥8.'0.6 sjuswisnipy (10l
- zee (568) 191 (568) 191 ssouasqe pajesuadwod
- 009 - - (2g2) 009 s}isodap Jewoisny
- (209'v9) - - R 14 (209'¥9) spuny J8yo o} eng
- - - - - - sjualulanohb Jeyjo 0} sng
000'0¢} G8l'e {(62.'92) ShE'y 00°c (09LL) saijljlgel] panJddy
(G/6'Ch) zo9'6El 0€0'6S Ovy'8LL (660°9) (812'8€) a|qeded sjunodoy
saljige ul (9seslosp) asealol]
- TAAN A €0l 682Z'LT - - spuny Jayo Wwoly ang
rov'cy - - - - - asuadxe predaid
- oLe'glL (e58'2h) 006°'/2 (890°2€) {065'6) sjgeAIed9) saxe ]
€Z6'ZY (6L1%S) (526°001) {cec'ty) (L50'FL1) (168'L1) 9|qBAIS09] SIINOVOY
sjesse Ul asealoap (eseesou|)
- #91'0S GG LY 8.£°S Z80°0% 98/ vt awooul Bueladouou 1ayiQ
- - (9617'6) (8e8'6) 961’6 8E8'6 spuny 18yjo 0} pejeoojje uonepaldeq
- GEY'069°L 00L'cr9 6¥0'619 00c'ce8 g8’ L0l . uopepaldag
. salAloe Bunelado Aq pepinoid smoj) Used
19U 0] (s80}) sWwoou; Bunelado a|IpUCIal 0] sjuaLISN[PY
(evrzel)  § L¥8Y § (zgccez) ¢ (6L07LE) ¢ €18'gee $§ 098'8le  § (sso)) slwooul Bugesedo
saijAlloe Bupelado Agq papiaosd ysed
jou 03} (ss0]) swoout Buyjesado Jo uoljel|iouoday
spund 921198 BEEH Jeaj lold Jea ) juaung iea) lold Jea) uanng
fewtsiy| Jeap lamag lameg Ann Annn
- SOTMAIOY jusung Aejueg Arejueg A1BAA NEM YT
|EIUBLLILLIDAOD) spun4 asudiajus - sanIANIY adAj-ssauisng
(600Z ‘LE Joqwiaa( papue Jedk ay} 10} uoKeW.ojul dAeIRdWOD yym)
010Z ‘I€ 1oquiada( papud Jes)\
spun4 Aiejaridoid
SMOJ4 YSED JO Juswajels
NITMNYYHd 40 ALID
(papndUS)

P HqiUxd



CITY OF FRANKLIN

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2010

Exhibit J

City of Franklin

Agency Post Employment
ASSETS Funds Benefits Trust
Cash and investments $ 48,017,500 % 2,121,195
Accounts receivable 10,252 1,791
Taxes receivable 18,093,331 -
Total assets $ 66,121,083 2,122,986
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 360,790 6,730
Accrued liabilities - 12,000
Due to other governments 65,743,528 -
Special deposits 16,765 -
Total liabilities $ 66,121,083 18,730
Total net assets
held in trust for post employment benefits $ 2,104,256

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit K
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2010

City of Franklin
Post Employment

ADDITIONS Benefits Trust
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 793,852
Retirees 137,774
Investment earnings & appreciation 224,126
Total additions 1,155,752
DEDUCTIONS
Incurred claims 122,973
Prescription drug claims 126,510
Claims fees 8,312
Stop loss premiums iess claims received 48,459
Total deductions 306,254
Change in net assets 849,498

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:

Beginning of year 1,254,758

End of year $ 2,104,256

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's more significant accounting policies
is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in
this report. These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to
governmental units. A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Franklin. The reporiing entity for the
City consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. A legally separate organization should be reported as a component unit if
the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable to the
organization. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. A legally separate, tax exempt organization should be reported as a
component unit of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met (1) the
economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its
constituents; (2) the primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization; (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government’s operations and are reported with similar funds of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units would be reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
City. This report does not contain any discretely presented component units.

Bliended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1892 to
serve as a financing vehicle for a certain Tax Incrementai Financing (T1F) development
within the City. The Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council. Although it is legally separate from the
City, the Authority is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its
sole purpose is to finance and manage certain TIF development projects for the benefit
of the City. The Authority’s operations are included in the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements and in a TIF District capital projects fund. The
Authority follows accounting policies of the City. Financial information on the Authority
(TIF District #2) are contained in Schedules 9 & 10 of this report.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for
fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type
activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenue and other nonexchange revenue. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services
provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given
segment or function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate all
indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.

Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes ‘and other items not
included among program revenue are reported as general revenue. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, net
assets/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial
statements. Major individual government funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and

proprietary fund statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental and proprietary categories.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total
for all funds of that category or type.

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met
the 10 percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental and enterprise funds combined.

¢. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes is
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — accounts for the City’s primary operating activities. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special
assessments and other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest
on long-term debt other than enterprise fund debt.

TIF Districts Fund — accounts for resource accumulation from tax increments and other
revenue of the TIF Districts along with payments made for capital outlay, other
expenditures, principal and interest on long-term debt obligations of the TiF Districts.
Each TIF District is a sub fund of the TIF Districts Fund.

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services fo the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or
{b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Water Utility Fund ~ accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents
and bills for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services
for City residents and bills for those services.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})

In addition the City reports:
NonMajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than major capital projects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Master
Plan, St Martin’s Fair, Donation, Civic Celebrations and Grant.

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase
of equipment, street replacement, acquisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement,
Capital Improvement, Street improvement, Utility Improvement and Development.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service funds — account for the payment by the City for active employees of
group heaith and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the
billing of departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the
services received.

Fiduciary funds — account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations and/or governmental units. The fiduciary funds
include a property tax fund, an other agency fund that records the agency activity for
emergency government, monitoring and siting activities funded by others and a post
employment benefits trust fund for retiree group health costs.

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses
are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses,
gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the year that they are levied for.

Page 41



CiTY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred
revenue. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as
revenue when earned. Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are
performed.

The business-type activities follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges
between the City's Water Utility and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recorded when it is both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers grant revenue to be available if they are
collected within 150 days of the end of the current fiscal period and all other revenue to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and
pension expenditures which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid
with expendable available financial resources. '

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred revenue and are
recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City is
entitled to the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are
recorded as receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement
period are recorded as deferred revenue.

Page 42



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION {continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for instaliation of sanitary
sewers, water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they
become measurable and available. Annual installments due in future years are recorded
as receivables and deferred revenue.

Revenue susceptible to accrual include property taxes, room taxes, public charges for
services and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures,
licenses and miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable
and available under the criteria mentioned above.

Deferred revenue is reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred
revenue arises from taxes levied in the current year that are for subsequent year’s
operations. For governmental fund financial statements deferred revenue arises where
potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are
received before the City has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received
prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both
revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements (other than agency funds) are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Agency fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting and do not have a measurement focus.

The enterprise funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. Proprietary funds distinguish
operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with the proprietary fund’s principal operations. The principal operating revenue of the
Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services
provided. The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service
Commission. Sanitary sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based
on the charges received from the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewage District. The principal
operating revenue of the internal service fund is charges to other funds for group health
coverage.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administration and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pecember 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SiGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY
1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies. The first covers all funds except
fiduciary funds for retiree health purposes. The objective of this policy is to generate
current income, consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent
person rules. As operating reserves, the quality, liquidity and maturity structure of the
portfolio are most important. The investment policy:

a. Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of AA by either Moody's or
Standard & Poor’s.

b. Limits an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the fair value
of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. Government Treasury, Agency and
securities that have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Government.

c. Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life of
the portfolio not exceeding 2% years and no individual issue with a maturity
exceeding 5 years af the date of purchase to limit interest rate risk.

d. Limits investments highly sensitive to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies to limit interest rate risk.

e. Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities.

f. Limits derivative investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less.

In addition the City's investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments
that follow state statutes, section 66.0603, that limits investments to:

a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan
association authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three
years or less.

b. The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

c. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGN{FICANT ACCOUNTING PoLIcIES {continued)

D.

f.

g.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

. Cash and Investments (continued)

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district,
village, town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a
local exposition district, a local professional baseball park district, a local
professional football stadium district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority.

Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.
Securities of an open-ended management investment company or investment trust
subject to various conditions and investment options.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The

policy:

coop

ol 1]

Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposes.
Requires management by an outside investment manager.

Requires compliance with the “prudent person” standard.

Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liability stream of benefits, the
relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions.

Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and return.

Allows investment in various asset classes.

e. Limits investment in equities after five years to 75% of total assets to be invested.

During the first five years equity investments may be up to 100% of the assets.

The City manages the various risks in its cash and investments as follows:

a.

Custodial credit risk — investments are held by trustee or third party custodian.

— deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits are maintained
in the State LG!IP or collateralized bank balances in
amounts at ieast 75% of the year end cash balances.

Credit risk — securities purchased need to have a AA or better investment rating.
Concentration of credit risk - issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the
market value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. issued securities.

Interest rate risk — managed by limiting the length of maturity and the average life
of the portfolio.

Page 45



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on
quoted market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments
necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as
increases or decreases in investment income. Investment income on commingled
investments of City accounting funds is allocated based on average investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment
Fund (SIF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the
statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its
underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw funds in
total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2010, the fair value of the City's share of
LGIP assets was substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1.
In addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to
the state government, county government, local school districts, technical college district
and metropolitan sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the
current year for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing
units on the accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net assets.

Property tax calendar — 2010 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2010
Tax bills mailed December 2010
Payment in full, or January 31, 2011
First installment due January 31, 2011
Second instailment due March 31, 2011

_ Third installment due May 31, 2011
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2011
Final tax settlement with County August 20, 2011
Tax deed by County — 2010

Delinquent real estate taxes October 2013

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncoilectible accounts. No
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds
because of their right by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)
2. Receivables (continued)

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individua! funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as ‘due
to and from other funds”. Long term interfund loans are reported as “advances from and
to other funds”. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental
activities are eliminated in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and the proprietary activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

In the governmental fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equal!y
by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Governmenial fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures
when purchased. The fuel inventory is recorded at cost on a first-in first-out basis using
the consumption method of accounting. Year end inventory was not significant.
Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and for operation and
maintenance work. They are not for sale. Material and supplies on hand at year end are
considered immaterial.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregation is
required by bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets are so classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities
will be used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if generated
from earnings, is shown as restricted net assets.

5. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial cost of more than $1,000 for general capital assets and $10,000 for
infrastructure assets with estimated useful lives of two years or more. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual amounts are not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Page 47



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

5. Capital Assets (continued)
Government-Wide Statements (continued)

Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded
at original cost, which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost
of funds used during construction when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of
interest capitalized equals the interest expense incurred during construction netted
against any interest from temporary investment of borrowed fund proceeds. No net
interest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and betterments
relating to retirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property repiaced,
retired or otherwise disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally,
together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to the applicable function.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation refiected in the statement of net
assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation. The range of useful lives by asset type follows:

Buildings and improvements 20-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 2-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-90 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same in the
government-wide statements.

6. Other Assets

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as expenditures in the
current period. For the government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements,
debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the debt issue.

7. Compensated Absences
Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted

sick leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounts. Only benefits considered to
be vested are disclosed in these statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

7. Compensated Absences (continued)

All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay are accrued when
incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements and are payable with
expendable available resources.

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay wili be made
at rates in effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory time,
severance pay and vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary
rates and include salary related payments. Vacation and compensatory time are used on
a first-in, first-out basis. Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered to be due within
one year. Severance due within one year is estimated based on employee age and
expected retirement. ‘

8. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations
consist primarily of notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. The face value of debt (plus any premium) is reported as other
financing sources and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures.
The proprietary fund accounting is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

For the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, issuance costs, bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the issue using the
effective interest method. Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the
remaining life of the old debt, or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The
balance at year end for both premiums/discounts and gains/losses, as applicable, is
shown as an increase or decrease in the liability section of the statement of net assets.

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for the
benefit of private business enterprises. IDRB’s are secured by mortgages or revenue
agreements on associated projects of the business enterprises. The |DRB’s do not
constitute indebtedness of the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities
in the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {continued)
9. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during
the year as expenditures in the government funds. If they are not to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources, no liability is recognized in governmental fund
financial statements. The related expenditure is recognized when the liability is
liquidated. Claims and judgments are recorded in the government-wide statements and
proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities are incurred. There were no
significant claims or judgments at year end.

10. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances (excluding any unspent bond proceeds) of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

C. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified
as reserved and unreserved. Reserved fund balance is that portion of fund balance that
is not available for the subsequent year's budget due to legal restrictions or resources
which are not available for current spending. Unreserved fund balance includes funds set
aside by management for specific uses, which are labeled “designated”. The balance of
unreserved fund balance is labeled “undesignated”, which indicates it is available for
appropriation. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide
statements.
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December 31, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)
11. Comparative data

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the prior year for individual
enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
the changes in financial position and operations of these funds. This comparative data is
not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with general accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 from which the
data was derived.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance —
total governmentai funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains
that “other long term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds®. The details of this difference are as follows:

Special assessments $1,923,984
Accrued interest receivable 53,040
$1,977.024

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

Land $24,695,045
Buildings 23,997,831
Machinery and equipment ' 15,702,981
Infrastructure 87,929,115
Construction in progress 52,225
Less: Accumulated depreciation (36,703,688)
Adjustment for capital assets $115,673,509
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

A. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets (continued)

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities.
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both current and long-term-are reported in the
‘statement of net assets.

General obligation debt $39,890,000
Deferred amounts for premiums 180,475
Unamortized debt issue costs (147,624)
Unamortized deferred refunding amounts (375,613}
Compensated absences 1,537,987
Net pension obligation 107,775
Accrued interest 528,457

Combined adjustment for long-term liabilities $41.731,457

B. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund
balances include a reconciliation between the net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in
the government-wide statement of activities.

Governmental funds report the effects of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and
similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. The details of the differences are as follows:

Amortization of issuance costs $(34,345)
Amortization of deferred refunding amounts (83,529)
Amartization of premium 68,534

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities $(49.340)
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December 31, 2010

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{continued)

B. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities (continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “some expenses reported in the
statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds™. The details of this
difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $23,630
Net pension obligations 2,407
Accrued interest payable : 69.079

Net adjustments to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities 95,11

Another element of that reconciliation states that “revenue in the governmental funds that
provides current financial resources but have been previously recorded as revenue in the
statement of activities”. The details of this difference are as foliows:

Special assessment collections $353,793
Change in accrued interest receivables 4,062

Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities $357.855
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NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented
using the same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the
exception of encumbrances, transfers from the general fund to special revenue funds
and tax equivalent from the Water Utility. Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures
presented reflect actual (GAAP) expenditures adjusted for expenditures liguidated under
the prior period budget and encumbrances expected to be liquidated under the current
period budget. Actual (budgetary basis) revenue present the tax equivalent from the
Water Utility as tax revenue while GAAP basis statements present this item as a transfer.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, Library, Capital OQutlay,
Equipment Replacement, Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Sanitary Sewer and
Water Utility funds. Budgets have not been formally adopted for other funds.

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year. The City
may authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between
departments and changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of
the Common Council. Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant.
Appropriations lapse at the end of the year unless specifically carried over. Carryovers
to the following year were not material. Budgets are adopted at the function level of
expenditure.

B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY

As part of Wisconsin's Act 28 (2009), legislation was passed that continued the limitation
of the City's future tax levies. Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy dollar
amount (excluding TIF districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in
the City’s equalized value due to new construction, or 3.0% for the 2010 levy collected in
2011. Unused tax levy may be carried forward into the following year. Changes in debt
service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this limit. The levy limit
proposed in the State budget would continue levy limits in some form for twa more years.

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is utilized by all funds. Each fund’s
portion of this pool is displayed on the statement of net assets and balance sheet as
cash and investments of the City. In addition, investments are separately held by several
of the funds.

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000
for interest bearing accounts and unlimited for non or low interest bearing accounts.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City's bank accounts are aiso insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee
Fund in the amount of $400,000. However, although the fund had reserves available at
December 31, 2010, the future availability of resources o cover the losses cannot be
projected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in
the fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is
exhausted at which time the fund is abolished.

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provide collateralization
in excess (about 20%) of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral is maintained at
the Federal Reserve and the City receives monthly reports of the collateral in place. The
collateral balance at December 31, 2010 was $12,175,755. Cash and investmenis as
shown on the December 31, 2010 City of Franklin Statement of Net Assets are subject to
the following risks:

Carrying  Bank & Investment

Value Balances Risks
Local Government Investment Pool  $ 8,11 3008 $ 8,113,008 Credi and interest rate
Money market funds 327,214 327,214 Credit and interest rate
U.S. treasuries and agencies 2,609,427 2.609,427 Credit, interest rate
and concentration of credit
SBA repurchase agreements 2,700,000 2,700,000 Credit, interest rate and
Custodial
Corporate notes 2,584 260 2,684,260 Credi, interest rate
and concentration of credit
Asset backed securities 186,736 186,736 Credit and interest rate
Total Fixed income investments 16,520,645 16,520,645
Equity funds 1,644,945 1,644,945 Custodial
Fixed income funds 98,130 98,130 Credit, interest rate and
Custodial
Cash and demand deposits 51,198,641 34,689,018 Custodial
Total $ 69,462,361 $ 52,952,738

Reconciliation to the financial statements is shown below:
Per Statement of Net Assets
Primary Govermnment:

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 19,061,814
Restricted cash and investments 261,852
Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Agency Funds 48,017,500
- Post Employment Benefits Trust 2,121,195

. § 69,462,361
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December 31, 2010

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
a financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City. As of
December 31, 2010 of the City’s total bank balances of $34,689,018 with none of the
palances uninsured and uncoliateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk.
For Investments — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. All of the City’s investments except the
Local Government Investment Poo! have a tri-party relationship with the investments held
by a party independent of the party managing the investment.

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its
obligation. The City’s policy requires a minimum credit rating of AA at time of purchase.
The City's fixed income investments subject to credit risk include treasuries, agencies,
corporate asset backed securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements
and money market funds and were rated by Moody's Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2010, 46.0% of the investments were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk. The ratings were as follows: AAA at 69.3%, AA2 at
8.4%, AA3 at 8.1%, A2 at 2.1% and A3 at 12.1%. The portfolio makeup of fixed income
investments was corporate securities including asset backed securities at 15.2%,
treasury and agency securities at 14.3%, repurchase agreements at 14.8% and money
market funds at 1.8%. The Local Government Investment Pool was 44.4% of the
investments and is not rated but is subject to credit risk and equities and fixed income
mutual funds held in trust at 9.5% make up the remainder of the investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to
a large investment position in a single issuer. As of the December 31, 2010 no issue
other than the Local Government Investment Pool had a position of greater than five
percent of the portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that rising interest rates will have an
adverse impact on the fair value of the investments in the portfolio. The longer the
maturities in the portfolio the greater the risk of loss is in portfolio value.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

As of December 31, 2010 the City’s fixed income investments were as foliows:

Fair Investment Maturity in years
Investment type ( in thousands) Value - Less than 1 1-5 Over 5

Money market funds $ 327214 $ 327,214 % - % -
SBA repurchase agreements 2,700,000 2,700,000 - -
U.S. treasuries and agencies 2,608,427 - 2,609,427 -
Asset backed securities 186,736 8,686 178,050 -
Corporate notes 2,584,260 1,370,043 1,214,217 -
Local government investment pool 8,113,008 8,113,008 - -

Total $ 16,520,645 $ 12,518,951 $ 4,001,694 $ -

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes and special assessments from citizens and
others. Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad
debts, principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $27,662 at
December 31, 2010. Other than the note receivable and special assessment
receivables, all other receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

The City has a note receivable with a local business in the amount of $8,160,000. Terms
of the note call for semi-annual payments of interest at 1.95% and annual principal
ranging from $625,000 to $670,000 until maturity on February 28, 2014, at that time the
remaining balance will be due. '

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Property taxes receivable for the subsequent year are not earned and can not be used to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue
recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At
the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred and unearned
revenue reported in the financia! statements were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned Total
Govemmental funds:
Property taxes receivable $ - $ 28,162,022 $ 28,162,022
Interest receivable 53,040 - 53,040
Special assessments not yet due 1,923,984 - 1,923,984
Total deferred/uneamed revenue
for governmental funds $ 1,977,024 $ 28,162,022 $ 30,139,046
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and
regulations of the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund — an
Enterprise Fund, incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the
rate structure to be used for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required

by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Revenue generated from this

charge is accumulated and used for replacement of certain equipment. The balance in

this account at December 31, 2010 is $261,852.

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Additions  Dispositions Balance
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 24664244 $ 53,784 $ 22983 24,695,045
Construction in progress 151,662 44,889 144,326 52,225
Total capital assets not depreciated 24,815,906 98,673 167,309 24,747,270
Capital assets depreciated.
Buildings & improvements 23,924 476 73,355 - 23,997,831
Machinery & equipment 14,934,355 1,092,877 324,251 15,702,981
Infrastructure 85,791,858 2,137,256 - 87,929,115
Total capital assets depreciated 124,650,690 3,303,488 324,251 127,629,927
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements 6,375,424 549,591 - 6,925,015
Machinery & equipment 8,755,598 836,044 324,251 9,267,391
Infrastructure 19,059,415 1,451,867 - 20,511,282
Total accumulated depreciation 34,190,437 2,837,502 324,251 36,703,688
Net capital assets depreciated 90,460,253 _ 465,986 - 90,926,239
Governmetal Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 115,276,159 $ 564,659 167,309 § 115,673,509

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & human setvices
Culture & recreation
Conservation & development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense
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December 31, 2010

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated:
Land $ 429884 $ 91,341 § - $ 521,225
Construction in progress 56,229 587,612 - 643,841
Total capital assets not depreciated 486,113 678,953 - 1,165,066
Capital assets depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 2,322,250 - - 2,322,250
Machinery & equipment 2,535,712 47,756 20,023 2,563,445
Infrastructure 106,500,217 337,291 2,482 106,835,026
Total capital assets depreciated 111,358,179 385,047 22,505 111,720,721
fess: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements 800,970 74,432 - 875,402
Machinery & equipment 1,371,282 132,779 20,023 1,484,038
[nfrastructure 18,843,481 1,483,224 2482 20,324,223
Total accumulated depreciation 21,015,733 1,690,435 22,505 22,683,663
Net capital assets depreciated 90,342,446 (1,305,388) - 89,037,058
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, ‘
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 90,828,559 §$ (626,435) $ - $90,202,124
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows.
Business-Type Activities:
W ater 1,041,386
Sewer 649,049
1,690,435
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2010 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Governmental funds:
General Water Uiility $ 22,178
Water Utility Sanitary Sewer -
22,178
Enterprise funds:
Sanitary Sewer Water Utility 23,954
Subtotal - Fund Financial Statements 46,132
Less: Fund eliminations 23,954

Total internal balances - Government-Wide
Statement of Net Assets $ 22,178

The principal purpose of these interfund balances result from the time lag between the
dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between
funds are made. |n all cases amounts are repaid within one year.

For the statement of net assets, interfund balances owed within the governmental
activities or business — type activities are netted and eliminated.

The City of Franklin provides short and long term advances to its TIF Districts. The
amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves. They
are used to enable the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans and may be
replaced in the future by direct borrowing. The TIF Districts interest rate is based upon
the interest rate incurred by the Debt Service Fund on it's borrowings or the reinvestment
rate available to other funds. The advances will be repaid as the proportionate principal
amounts in the Debt Service Fund are due or when TIF District resources are available.

Amounts not due

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount within one year
Governmental funds;
Debt Service TIF Districts $ 2,788,000 $ 2,263,000
Capital Projects-Development TIF Districts 1,475,000 -
Less: Fund eliminations (4,263,000)
Total long-term advances - Government-Wide
Statement of Net Assets $ -
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the
fund that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use
unrestricted revenue collected in the General Fund to finance various programs

accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Out

General Enterprise - Water Utility

Enterprise - Sanitary Sewer
Total General

Debt Service Capital Projects - Development
Nonmajor funds:
Special Revenue:
St Martins Fair General
Civic Celebrations General
Capital Projects Funds:
Capital Improvements Capital Projects - Street Improvement
Capital Projects - Development
TIF Districts

Total nonmajor funds

Subtotal - Fund financial siatements
Less: Fund eliminations
Less: Government-wide eliminations

Total transfers - Government-wide Statement of Activities
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$ 1,010,459
2,907

1,013,366
164,754

11,000
13,000

142,379
47
45,108

211,534

1,389,654
(376,288)

(2,217)
$ 1,011,149
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS

General Obligation Debt

Long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Governmental Activities

General obligation debt

Unamortized premium

Net pension obligation

Deferred refunding amounis
Sub-total

Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay
Accrued severance pay
Accrued compensatory time

Total compensated absences

Government activities

Long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Amounts due
12/31/09 Additions Deletions 12/31/10  within one year
$ 45,165,000 $ - $5,275,000 % 39,890,000 $ 7,395,000
259,009 - 68,534 190,475 68,534
110,182 - 2,407 107,775 11,222
{459,142) - (83,529) (375,613) {65,524)
45,075,049 - 5262412 39,812,637 7,409,232
381,571 833,233 844,077 370,727 370,727
1,029,722 12,366 27,622 1,014,466 37,000
150,324 200,523 198,053 152,794 152,794
1,661,617 1,046,122 1,069,752 1,537,987 560,521

$ 46,636,666 §$ 1,046,122

$6,332,164 §$ 41,350,624 $ 7,969,753

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the

City. The notes and bonds will be retired by future property tax levies, special assessment
collections and designated landfill revenue.

The governmental activities compensated absences accrue to and are paid from the City’s

General Fund.

Business-type Activities

Compensated absences:
Accrued vacation pay
Accrued severance pay
Accrued compensatory time

Business-type activities

Long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Amounts due
12/31/09 Additions Deletions 12/31/10  within one year

3 37158 § 42070 $ 44765 $ 34,463 $ 37,158
80,078 7212 7,792 79,498 -
3,118 10,383 6,786 6,715 6,715

$ 120354 $ 59665 $ 59343 § 120676 9 43,873
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable are as follows:

Balance
Date of interest Principal Interest Original Quistanding
Type issue Rate Payable Payable Amount 12/31
General obligation promissory notes
8/15/05 3.75-3.90 3/ 1/07-15 3M1& 9N $ 10,000,000 $ 8,300,000
1/1/06 3.75-3.90 3/ 1/09-11 3M1& 91 10,000,000 4,700,000
113107 4.95 3/ 1/08-14 3M1& 9/1 10,000,000 8,160,000 '
8/26/08 3.00-3.50 3/ 1/02-14 3M& 91 10,000,000 9,000,000 2
General obligation bonds
4/15/01 43540 3/ 1/02-21 3M1& 9N 10,000,000 105,000
General obligation refunding bonds
1/3/07 3.80 3/ 1/08-21 3M& 9 9,925,000 9,625,000
$ 39,890,000

! issued for non capital TIF purposes 2 1ssued 50% for non capital TIF purposes
Annual principal and interest payments to maturity on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows:

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2010 are
$183,525,435 and $143,635,435, respectively.

Balance
Qutstanding
Year Principal Interest Total 12/31
2010 $ 39,890,000
2011 $ 7395000 $ 1,440,330 $ 8,835,330 32,495,000
2012 4,675,000 1,208,524 5,883,524 27,820,000
2013 5,640,000 1,014,820 6,654,820 22,180,000
2014 12,365,000 641,526 13,006,526 9,815,000
2015 2,720,000 322,390 3,042,390 7,095,000
2016 - 2020 5,910,000 782,420 6,692,420 1,185,000

2021 1,185,000 22,515 1,207,515 -
$ 39,890,000 $ 5,432,525 § 45,322,525
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December 31, 2010

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

In prior years the City defeased certain maturities of the April 15, 2001 general obligation
bonds by placing the proceeds of new debt in irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, trust account assets and liability for
the defeased debt is not included in the City’s financial statements. At December 31,
2010 $9,470,000 of debt outstanding has been defeased. The defeased debt is callable
onh March 1, 2011.

Conduit Debt Obligations

Eleven series of Industrial Revenue Bonds originally issued with an aggregate principal
amount of $121,935,000 are outstanding with a December 31, 2010 balance of
$114,878,237.

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES

Goverpmental Activities
Government”activities net assets reported on the government-wide statement of net
assets at December 31, 2010 include the following:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

fand $ 24,695,045
Construction in process 52,225
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 90,926,239
Less: related long term debt outstanding (25,081,029)
Total invested in capital assets 90,592,480
Restricted for:
Library 498,483
Utility improvement 356,798
Development 3,620,826
Donations 118,969
Grants 192,132
Total restricted 4,787,208
Unrestricted 4,901,493
Total governmental activities net assets $ 100,281,181
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2010 include the following:

Reserved - Major Funds:
Reserved - Major funds:
General Fund - Inventoties, prepaid items and encumbrances
Debt Service Fund - subsequent year debt service
Debt Service Fund - advances to other funds
TiF Districts Fund - contractual obligations and debt service
Reserved - Non Major funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Library services including prepaid expenses
Donations and grants
Capital Projects Funds:
Equipment replacement & Development - Advances to other funds
Capital Outlay and Equipment replacement - encumbrances
Capital improvement - contracual obligations & encumbrances
Development
Utility Improvement
Total reserved

Unreserved Major Fund - General Fund
Designated for working capital
Designated for subsequent year expenditures
Undesignated

Total General Fund

Unreserved Major Fund - TIF Districts Fund
Undesignated (Deficit)
Unreserved Non Major Funds:
Special Revenue funds:
Designated for master plan acfivities
Designated for civic celebration & St Martin's fair activities
Total Special Revenue funds
Capital Projects funds:
Designated for Capital Outlay
Designated for Equipment Replacement
Undesignated for Capital Improvement
Designated for Street Improvement
Total Capital Projects funds

Total Unreserved funds
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% 895,173

233,278
2,788,000
8,207,000

498,483
311,101

1,475,000
51,500
109,000
2,145,826
356,798

$ 16,271,159

$ 3,740,000
661,000
980,412

5,381,412

(2,251,592)

109,020
70,204

179,224

401,791
1,448,732
282,301
416,921
2,549,745

$ 5,858,789



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System

All eligible protective City of Franklin employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement
System (“System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee
retirement system (“PERS”). All such permanent employees expected to work over 600
hours a year are eligible to participate in the System. Covered employees in the general
category are required by statute to contribute 6.2% of their salary (5.0% for protective
occupations with social security, and 3.9% for protective occupations without social
security) to the plan.

Employers may make these contributions to the plan on behalf of the employees.
Employers are required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund
the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended December 31, 2010
was $7,122,613 and the employer’s total payroll was $12,618,031. The total required
contribution paid entirely by the employer for the year ended December 31, 2010 was
$1,388,909, or 19.5% of covered payroll. Of the total required contribution, 100% was
contributed for the current year. Total contributions for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 were $1,495,458 and $1,404,643, respectively which equal the required
contributions for each year.

The System provides protective employees who retire at or after age 53 with 25 years or
more of service or age 54 with less than 25 years of service are entitled to receive
retirement benefits. Protective employees may retire at age 50 and receive actuarially
reduced benefits. The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2)
years of creditable service and (3) a formula factor. Final Average Earnings is the
average of the protective employee’s three highest year's earnings. Protective
employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for retirement
benefits may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any
subsequent benefits. For employees beginning participation after January 1, 1990 and no
longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five
years is required for eligibility for a ret:rement annwty Participants employed prior to
1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 are immediately vested.

The System also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and
the amount of all benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The System issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the
Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, WI 53707-7931.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Public Works Employees Pension Plan
Plan Description

The City is also a pariicipant in the City of Franklin Public Works Employees’ Pension
Plan, a non-contributory single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible
public works employees. The assets of this Plan are administered by Principal Life
Insurance Company. An annual financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan
administrator at Principal Financial Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des Maines, |A 50306-9396.

Employees attaining the age of 60 are entitled to annual benefits of 1.98% of average
compensation multiplied by the number of complete years of service subsequent to
January 1, 19568. Average compensation is defined as the monthly total pay plus salary
deferrals, compensation and overtime received for the three consecutive years out of the
ten latest years which gives the highest average. Employees may retire early and
receive reduced benefits at age 55 with at least ten years of service.

Disability benefits equivalent to expected benefits at normal retirement date are paid until
normal retirement date, death or recovery. If an active employee dies, his or her
beneficiary receives a lump-sum cash payment equal to the participant's accumulation at
date of death or an annuity benefit deferred until participant’s earliest retirement date.

If an employee terminates his or her employment with the City, the employee has the
option of accepting either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of participant's vested accumulations. An employee becomes
50% vested after five years of service and 100% vested after ten years. '

Employees do not make pension contributions. The City contributes all amounts
necessary to fund the pension plan. Starting in 2010, the City uses the entry age normal
actuarial cost method.

Funding Policy
The City's funding policy has been to provide yearly contributions at actuarially

determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are designed to
accumutate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

Public Works Employees Pension Plan (continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For 2010, the City’s required contribution of $232,250 was determined during a
January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. As a
result during the year ended December 31, 2010, contributions totaling $232,250
were accrued. This resulted in the net pension obligation being reduced by
$2.407. The accrued employer contribution amount represented 14.8% of current
year payroll compared to the 13.7% anticipated in the 2009 actuarial report. The
primary reason for the increase was the 2008 negative investment return.

The entry age normal actuarial cost method does identify or separately amortize
unfunded actuarial liabilities. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized
over a 20 year closed period. Significant actuarial assumptions include: (a) a rate
of return on the investment of present and future assets ranging of 8.0%
compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% per year
compounded annually, attributable to inflation. The assumptions do not include
post retirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of investments over a five-year period.
Three Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/2010 % 232,250 100% $ 107,775
12/31/2009 207,962 100% 110,182
12/31/2008 99,781 111% 116,311

The following table shows components of the City’s annual pension cost for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the City’s net pension obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 232,250
Interest on net pension cbligation 8,815
Adjustment to annual required contribution (11,222}

Annual pension expense 229,843
Contributions made (232,250)

Decrease in net pension obligation (2,407)
Net pension obligation - beginning of year 110,182
Net pension obligation - end of year $ 107,775
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" CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)
Public Works Employees Pension Plan (continued)

Annual Pension Cost
Funding progress

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate [(B)-(A)] [(AY(B)] Payroll [(CY(E)]
1/12010 $ 4,664,099 $5096,256 §$§ 432,157 92% $ 1,574,282 27%

The major change in the actuarial assumptions during the valuation year ended January
1, 2010 was the switch to using the entry age normal cost method. The multi year trend
information is located in the required supplementary information immediately following
the notes to the financial statements.

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Frankiin non-protective employees (except
public works employees) participate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan (the
“Plan”). The Plan assets are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company.

Employees after completing six months of service with the City are eligible to participate.
The Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each participant's account
equal to 10% of such participant’s annual compensation. Employees may but are not
required to make coniributions. A participant's accrued benefit for City contributions is
100% vested and non forfeitable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or
permanent and total disability as defined in the Plan. If employment is terminated for any
other reason, each participant's accrued benefit vests at various percentages, based on
years of service. During 2010, the City made the required contribution amounting to
$399,446, or 10% of covered payroll and employees made $5,787 in additional voluntary
contributions to the plan. The City may make amendments to the Plan.

C. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The City of Franklin administers a single employer defined benefit post employment
benefit pian through a trust. The City of Frankliin Post Employment Benefits Trust is
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting and presented as a fiduciary fund.
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the trust. Retiree and City
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {continued)

City of Franklin eligible full time employees meeting minimum age and service

requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period

from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. This results in an other post

employment benefit (OPEB) obligation for those groups. These groups commonly have

higher medical costs than anticipated in the blended premium rates. That differential is
referred to as an implicit rate subsidy.

Contribution requirements are established by either City ordinance or collective
bargaining and may be amended only by the groups establishing the requirements. The
City’'s periodic contribution is determined and fixed at the time of retirement. The retiree
pays the balance of the periodic blended premium. The eligibility for the benefit follows:

Employee Group # City Amount Age Years Service
Non-represented 37 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 57 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 15
Dispatch 14 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20
Fire 43 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20
DPW 31 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15

The City's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) expense is calculated based
upon the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City. An actuarial calculation by an
actuary was used to calculate the ARC and related information using the measurement
method required by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers with 200 or more total plan
members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a closed period of 30 years. The following table shows the components of
the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the trust and
changes in the City's net OBEB obligation for retiree health benefits:

Annual required contribution 3 793,852
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB expense 793,852
Contributions made (793,852)

Increase in net OPER obligation -
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ -
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
trust and the net OPEB obligation for the current and prior two years were as follows:

Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2010 $ 793,852 100.0% $ -
12/31/2009 591,351 100.0% -
12/31/2008 703,713 100.0% -
Funding progress:
(A) (B) ©) (®) (E) {F)
Actuarial - UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Projected unit credit [{B)-(A)l [{A)/(B)] Payroli [(CY(EY]
1/1/2010 $1,254,758 $ 6,016,221 $ 4,761,463 21% $ 11,523,032 41%

The multi year trend information is located in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to the financial statements. The projection of fuiure
benefits for an ongoing benefit involves estimates for the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funding status of the trust and required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented immediately following the footnotes, presents muiti-year trend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of trust assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The above schedules of employer contributions present trend information about the
amounts contributed to the trust by the City in comparison to the ARC, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 43.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost for each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liahilities (or
funding excess) over a closed period of thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based upon the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point. The methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long
term perspective of the calculations.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The trust's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Retiree and City contributions are recognized in the period that contributions are due.
The City has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and
refunds are recoghized when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value
with the valuation determined by the independent custodian of the assets.

The following significant assumptions were made:
The actuarial valuation uses the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.

The ARC was calculated using the level percentage of payroll method, amortizing costs
over a closed period of 30 years. The remaining amortization period at December 31,
2010 was 27 years. '

Based upon the expected return of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
under the investment policy adopted for the Trust, a discount rate of 7% was used.

The actuarial value of the trust assets is determined using techniques that spread the
impact of short term volatility over a five year period.

Group health charges for actives and retirees were used as the basis for calculation of
the present value of total benefits to be paid.

The expected healthcare trend rate of increase in group health charges was based upon
the recent experience of the City of Franklin self funded health care program. A rate of
0% for year one, 9.7% for year two, reduced to an ultimate rate of 5.2% after nineteen
years, was used.

The expected long term payroll growth rate was assumed to be 3%.

Rates of retirement, mortality and termination for reasons ‘other than retirement and
death are from the “Wisconsin Retirement System 2003-2005 Experience Study”.

Marital status at retirement was assumed to be 75% with a spouse or dependants.
D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times is party to claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such
matters in not presently determinable, it is the opinion of City management and the City
attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial position.

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursements to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the
grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2010

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has no material outstanding contractual commitments other than disclosed in
these financial statements relating to various Public Works projects and equipment
purchases at December 31, 2010.

The City receives impact fees for new development projecis. The fees are to be used to
fund specific projects within a specific period of time. In the event the projects are not
completed or the time period elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees
to the current owners of properties that the fees were originally collected.

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, incliuding
property taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and
permits and other miscellaneous revenue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of
aid and grant programs that benefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are
dependent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature,
through their budget process. The State of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget
problems and is considering numerous alternatives including reducing aid to local
governments. Any changes made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid
programs could have a significant impact on the future operating results of the City.

E. RISK MANANGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction
of assets, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers' compensation claims
that the City carries commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance
coverage occurred for any risk of loss in the past year, and settled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which
the City is self-insured. This activity is accounted for in the City's Self Insurance Internal
Service Fund. Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and
retirees participating in the program. A third party administrator handles claims
payments. The City carries stop loss insurance for losses in excess of $50,000 per year
per individual. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an estimated amount
for claims that have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR").

Changes in the balance of claims payable for the two years ended December 31, 2010
are as follows:

Current
Balance Claims and Balance
Beginning Changes in Claims End
of Year Estimates Paymenis of Year
2010 $ 188,000 $ 3,189,733 $ 3,059,733 $ 318,000
2009 250,000 2,627,082 2,689,082 188,000

Page 73



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
{Unaudited)
December 31, 2010

PuBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(A (B) (©) (D) (B) (F)
Actuarial UAAL as

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroli

Date Value - Aggregaie [(B)-(A)] [(AY(B)] Payrofi KCY(E)
1/1/2010 $ 4,664,099 $5,096256 $ 432,157 92% $ 1,674,282 27%
1/1/2009 4,358,231 4468413 110,182 98% 1,521,581 7%
1/1/2008 3,829,158 3,945,469 116,311 97% 1,358,310 9%

CITY OF FRANKLIN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(A) (B) (€) (D) (B) (F)

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Projected unit credit [{(B)-{A)] [(AM(BY] Payroll HCY(E)
111/2010 $1,254,758 $ 6,016,221 $ 4,761,463 21% % 11,623,032 41%
1/1/2009 580,028 5,989,535 5,409,507 10% 12,137,498 45%
1/1/2008 - 7,972,327 7,972,327 0% 11,725,456 68%

Note: the Trust was not yet in effect when the first actuarial valuation was completed.

The study dated January 1, 2008 was the study prepared for the adoption of GASB #45.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
debt service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes.

Library Operating Fund - This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the Library.
Library Auxiliary Fund - This fund accounts for Library donations, fines and forfeitures.

Master Plan Fund - This fund accounts for resources dedicated to improving the
- Comprehensive Master Plan for the City.

Donation Fund - This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes.

St Martin’s Fair Fund - This fund accounts for activities related to the farmers/flea market
held the first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day weekend.

Civic Celebrations Fund - This fund accounts for activity related to the City’s Fourth of
July, Fiftieth Anniversary and other celebrations.

Grant Fund — The City reports its grant activities in this fund. Grant activities include Fire
Department, Police Department, Health Department, Community Development Block
Grants and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Capital Outlay Fund — This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays. These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under
the direction of the department supervisor.

Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement
program that accumulates annuai funding (from property taxes) for replacement of
vehicles and similar equipment in lieu of using borrowed monies.

Capital Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects
and all public works projects and are usually funded with borrowed money or funding
from some other source other than the tax levy.

Street Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for the activities of the local road
improvement program. Funding is provided by the tax levy and a every other year local
road improvement grant from the State.

Utility Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees that are used for water and sewer construction projects.

Development Fund - This fund is used to account for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Scheduie 3

TAXES
General property taxes
Water Utilify - tax equivalent
Cable TV franchise fees
Mobile home assessments
Motel room tax

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue
State expenditure restraint revenue
Fire insurance - dues
Local, state and federal grants and aids
Computer Aid
Transportation aids
Recycling
Other

L ICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses:
Beer and Liquor
Bartenders
Amusement and related
Peddlers
Food and related
Electrical contractors
Dog and cat
Other
Permits:
Building
Eiectrical
Plumbing
Sign
Park
Fire
Other

FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
% 16,124,000 $ 16,124,000 $ 16,121,570 $ (2,430)
920,000 920,000 1,013,366 93,366
410,000 410,000 442 810 32,810
30,000 30,000 26,510 {3,490)
200,000 200,000 151,894 {48,106)
17,684,000 17,684,000 17,756,150 72,150
550,000 550,000 549,147 (853)
211,000 211,000 208,715 (2,285)
110,000 110,000 115,148 5,148
43,000 43,000 37,543 (5,457)
1,458,000 1,458,000 1,458,603 603
88,000 88,000 92,521 4,521
3,000 12,000 49,581 37,581
2,463,000 2,472,000 2,511,258 39,258
41,100 41,100 31,237 (9,863)
14,500 14,500 17,674 3,174
10,000 10,000 11,140 1,140
- - 1,831 1,831
60,600 60,600 61,704 1,104
13,000 13,000 14,627 1,627
10,000 10,000 9,782 (218)
4,450 4,450 11,025 6,575
338,000 338,000 395,776 57,776
83,000 83,000 69,638 (13,362)
65,000 65,000 60,643 (4,357)
10,000 10,000 7,126 (2,874)
10,500 10,500 12,384 1,894
6,000 6,000 5,935 (65)
12,500 12,500 18,900 6,400
678,650 678,650 729432 50,782
400,000 400,000 422 508 22 506
{Continued)
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Schedule 3
{concluded)

CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government
Property reports and document fees $ 12,100 $ 12,100 % 6,847 § (5,253)
Public safety
Police Department and related 6,000 6,000 13,103 7,103
Ambulance service 900,000 800,000 867,253 (32,747)
Fire Department and related 154,000 154,000 108,458 (45,542)
Weights and measures 6,800 6,800 - (6,800)
Public works '
Weed cufting 10,050 10,050 15,885 5,835
Street lighting 3,000 3,000 2,000 (1,000)
Engineering and DPW fees 45,000 45,000 38,605 (6,395)
Landfill siting fees 20,000 20,000 167,807 147,807
Landfill tippage fees 505,000 505,000 516,882 11,882
Health and human services
Health clinics and other health fees 75,000 75,000 44 194 (30,806)
Conservation and development
Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees 97,500 97,500 57,042 {40,458)
1,834,450 1,834,450 1,838,076 - 3,626
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 250,000 250,000 237,319 (12,681)
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 395,000 395,000 226,206 (168,794)
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental 34,000 34,000 38,500 4 500
Property sales 3,000 3,000 969 {2,031)
Refunds and reimbursements 34,000 34,000 28,778 (5,222)
Insurance dividend 15,000 15,000 15,253 253
Qther revenue 15,900 15,900 101,765 85,865
101,900 101,800 185,265 83,365
TOTAL REVENUE $ 23,807,000 $ 23,816,000 $ 23906212 § 90,212
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Schedule 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Variance with

final budget -
Criginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
CURRENT
General Government
Common council $ 98,240 105,440 $§ 99,186 % 6,254
Municipal court 177,117 177,117 171,870 5,247
City clerk 305,441 305,441 297 486 7,955
Elections 42 996 42 996 30,518 12,478
Information services 404,900 355,400 351,920 3,480
Administraton 467,292 457,292 405,006 52,286
Finance 529,424 529,424 514,610 14,814
Audit 26,000 26,000 25,535 485
Assessor 237,786 237,786 237,817 (31)
Legal counsel 276,100 300,900 282,570 18,330
Municipal buildings 220,623 220,623 205,742 14,881
Property and liability insurance 67,100 67,100 70477 {3,377)
Other 12,500 12,500 1,637 10,863
Contingency 536,042 49,042 - 49,042
Total General Government 3,401,561 2,887,061 2,694,374 192,687
Public Safety
Police:
Police 7,653,656 7,610,656 7,506,188 104,468
Dispatchers 992 539 992,539 935,994 56,545
Fire 5,668,812 5,639,812 5,698,370 {58,558)
Fire protection service charge 295,900 295,900 269,925 25,975
Building inspection 764,220 759,220 729,130 30,000
Sealer of weights and measures 6,800 6,800 6,800 -
Total Public Safety 15,381,927 15,304,927 15,146,407 158,520
Pubtic Works
Engineering 569,514 569,514 558,996 10,518
Highway 2,384,362 2,372,362 2,263,938 108,424
Refuse collection 1,387,921 1,387,921 1,387,687 234
Street lighting 303,700 303,700 311,326 {7.,626)
Weed control 10,050 10,050 15,044 (4,984)
Total Public Works 4,655,547 4,643,547 4,536,991 106,556
Health and Human Services
Public health 590,983 590,983 582,046 8,937
Animal control 47,300 47,300 46,006 1,294
Total Health and Human Services 638,283 638,283 628,052 10,231
Culture and Recreation
St. Martin's fair 11,000 11,000 11,000 -
Civic celebrations 13,000 13,000 13,000 -
Senior activities and travel program 156,000 15,000 12,654 2,346
Parks 137,175 137,175 124,104 13,071
Total Cutture and Recreation 176,175 176,175 160,758 15,417
Conservation and Development
Planning 425,307 408,807 379,130 28,677
Economic development 28,200 28,200 7,053 21,147
Total Conservation and Development 453,507 437,007 386,183 50,824
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 24,707,000 $ 24087000 $23552,766 § 534,235
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Debt Service Fund

Schedule §

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2010

REVENUE
Taxes
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$ 1,900,000 $ 1,900,000 $ 1,900,000 % -

- - 227,560 227,560

197,117 187,117 257,087 59,970

2,097 117 2,097 117 2,384,647 287,530

850,000 850,000 850,000 -

758,101 758,101 757,023 1,078

1,608,101 1,608,101 1,607,023 1,078

489,016 489,016 777,624 288,608
343,000 280,984 164,754 (116,230)

832,016 770,000 942,378 172,378

2078,000 _ 2,078,900 2,078,900 -

$ 2,910,916 $ 2,848,900 $ 3,021,278 $ 172,378
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Library Operating Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Schedule 6

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Page 83

Variance with

Original final budget -
and final Favorable

Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$1,150,000 §$ 1,150,000 $ -
$ 50,000 122,021 72,021
24,000 10,329 (13,671)

- 749 749

1,224,000 1,283,099 59,009
1,186,676 1,164,562 22,114
86,500 81,687 4.803
1,273,176 1,246,259 26,917
(49,176) 36,840 86,016
353,843 353,843 -

$ 304667 $ 390683 § 86,016
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Schedule 8

PROPERTY TAX AGENCY FUND

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accountis payable
Due to other governments

Tofal liabilities

OTHER AGENCY FUND
ASSETS :
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Special deposits

Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Special deposits

Total liabilities

12/31/09

Additions

Deductions

12/31/10

$ 46,966,851
17,548,193

$ 94,284,036
65,743,528

$ 093,245257
65,198,390

$ 48,005,630
18,093,331

$ 64,515,044

$ 160,027,564

$ 158,443,647

$ 66,098,961

$ 73,911
64,441,133

$ 355,433
65,743,528

$ 73,911
64,441,133

$ 355433
65,743,528

$ 64,515,044

$ 66,098,961

$ 64,515,044

$ 66,098,961

$ 14,783

$ 25,529
10,252

$ 28,442

$ 11,870
10,252

$ 14,783

$ 35,781

% 28,442

$ 22,122

$ 1,297
13,486

$ 5,357
39,213

$ . 1297
35,934

$ 5,357
16,765

$ 14,783

$ 44,570

$ 37,231

$ 22,122

$ 46,981,634

17,548,193

$ 94,309,565

65,743,528
10,252

$ 93,273,699

65,198,390

$ 48,017,500

18,093,331
10,252

$ 64,529,827

$ 160,063,345

$ 158,472,089

$ 66,121,083

$ 75,208
64,441,133
13,486

$ 360,790
65,743,528
39,213

$ 75,208
64,441,133
35,934

$ 360,790
65,743,528
16,765

$ 64,529,827

$ 66,143,531

“

64,552,275

$ 66,121,083

Page 86



CITY OF FRANKLIN

TIF Districts Fund
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2010

Schedule 9

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Taxes receivable

Note receivable

Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liahilities
Deferred revenue
Long term advances
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)
Reserved for contractual obligations
Reserved for note receivaable
Unreserved

TIF #2
TIF #3
TIF #4

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

District #2 District #3 District #4 Total

$1,356,789 % 3590808 $ 247978 $ 1,964,575
' - - 7,004 7,094
- 53,040 - 53,040

4 493 995 1,407,207 836,103 6,737,305

- 8,180,000 - 8,160,000

125,671 - 1,502 127,173
$5976455 $ 9,980,055 $ 1,092677 $ 17,049,187
$ 5919 % 16511 % 3,004 25,434
15,000 - - 15,000
4,493,995 1,460,247 836,103 6,790,345

- - 4,263,000 4,263,000

4,514,914 1,476,758 5,102,107 11,093,779
44 000 3,000 - 47,000

- 8,160,000 - 8,160,000

1,417,541 - - 1,417,641

- 340,297 - 340,297
- - (4,009,430) (4,009,430)

1,461,541 8,503,297 (4,009,430) 5,955,408
$5976455 $ 9,980,055 $ 1,092677 $ 17,049,187
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
TIF Districts Fund

Schedule of TIF Districts Revenue, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances

Schedule 10

Year Ended December 31, 2010
District #2 District #3 District #4 Tofal

REVENUE _

Taxes $ 3,804,359 $ 2295166 $ 1 346,647 7,536,172

Intergovernmental revenue 360,558 326,765 3,254 690,577

Investment earnings 23,027 173,314 5,120 201,461

Total revenue 4 277 944 2,795,245 1,355,021 8,428,210

EXPENDITURES

Current.

Conservation and development 2,363 11,564 13,575 27,502
Capital outlay 102,516 105,028 2,169 209,713
Debt service

Principal 3,000,000 1,425,000 - 4,425,000

interest and fiscal charges 248,000 736,093 198,646 1,182,739

Total expenditures 3,352,879 2,277,685 214,390 5,844 954
Excess of revenue over expenditures 925,065 517,560 1,140,631 2,583,256
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out _ - - (45,108) {(45,108)
Net change in fund balances 925,065 517,560 1,095,523 2,538,148
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning 536,476 7,985,737 (5,104,953} 3,417,260
F(md balances (deficit) - ending $ 1461541 $ 8503297 % (4,009,430) $ 5,955,408

Page 88



Schedule 11

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source
December 31, 2010

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land $ 24,695,045
Buildings and improvements 23,997,831
Machinery and equipment 15,702,981
Infrastructure improvements 87,929,115
Construction in process 52,225
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 152,377,197
Investment in governmental capital assets by source:
General Fund $ 2482272
Special Revenue Funds 2,564,338
Capital Projects Funds 78,117,787
Donations 69,212,800
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 152377197
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

Capitat Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule by Function and Activity
Year Ended December 31, 2010

Schedule 11.1

Function and Activity
General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street Lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks
Total Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development:
Community deveiopment
Planning
Total Conservation and Development

Total governmental funds capital assets

Buildings Machinery
and and Infrastructure Construction

Land Improvements _ Equipment _ Improvements _In process Total
$ - % - 3% 2202 % - 8 - 2,202
- - 9,584 - - 9,584
- - 7.446 - - 7,446
- - 7,443 - - 7.443
- - 36,352 - - 36,352
- - 407,366 - - 407,366
- - 252,354 - - 252,354
- - 1,295 - - 1,295
- - 60,167 - - 60,167
- - 43,681 - - 43,681
- - 906 - - 906
628,238 3,044,309 527,768 - - 4,200,315
628,238 3,044,309 1,356,564 - - 5,029,111
1,201,829 8,418,912 2,622,033 - - 12,242 774
63,248 4,153,910 3,267,888 - - 7,485,046
- - 255,034 - - 255,034
1,265,077 12,672,822 6,144,855 - - 19,982,854
- - 356,580 - - 356,580
357,407 2,663,251 4 814,565 - - 7,835,223
- - 1,097 - - 1,097
17,997,867 - - 87,929,115 - 105,926,982
- - - - 52,225 52,225
18,355,274 2,663,251 5,172,242 8§7,929.115 52,225 114,172 107
- - 130,949 - - 130,949
16,769 4,905,110 2,534,848 - - 7,456,527
4,429,687 812,339 280,355 - - 5,522 381
4 448,456 5,717 449 2,815,003 - - 12,978,908
- - 83,268 - - 83,268
- - 83,268 - - 83,268
$24,895045 $ 23,997,831 $15702,981 §87,929,115 $ 52225 $ 152377197
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Schedule 11.2

Function and Activity

General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street Lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreation:
Library
Parks

Total Culture and Recreation

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Conservation and Development:

City development

Total Conservation and Development

Total governmental funds capital assets

12/31/09 Additions Deletions 1213110
3 2202 § - % - 8 2,202
4,769 4,815 - 9,584
7,446 - - 7,446
7,443 - - 7,443
36,352 - - 36,352
368,531 38,835 - 407,366
252 354 - - 252,354
1,295 - - 1,295
52,167 8,000 - 60,167
43,681 - - 43,681
906 - - 906
4,164,854 58,444 22,983 4,200,315
4,942 000 110,094 22,983 5,029,111
12,070,025 178,475 5,726 12,242,774
7,389,294 294 945 199,193 7,485,046
253,030 2,004 - 255,034
19,712,349 475424 204,919 19,982,854
209,620 146,960 - 356,580
7,643,655 310,900 119,332 7,835,223
1,097 - - 1,097
103,789,726 2,137,258 - 105,926,982
151,662 44 889 144,326 52,225
111,795,760 2,640,005 263,658 114,172,107
126,576 4373 - 130,948
7,323,932 132,595 - 7,456,527
5,484,871 37,510 - 5522,381
12,808,803 170,105 - 12,978,908
81,108 2,160 - 83,268
81,108 2,160 - 83,268
$ 149466596 $ 3402161 $ 491560 $ 152,377,197
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STATISTICAL SECTION






Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the basic
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends 7 ' Table 1
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

City’s financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Table 5
These tables contain trend informafion_ to help the reader assess the City’s most

significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity Table 11
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

City’s current level of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in

the future.

Demographic and Economic Information Table 14
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information _‘ Tabte 17
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to heip the reader understand

how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Uniess otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year.
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Table 8
CITY OF FRANKLIN

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Fiscal
year

2010
2008
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

Source:

Notes:

City Tax levy Qutstanding

Tax combined
increment Total % of levy delinquent

financing Local Total coliections collected PP taxes
$ 7,457,956 $ 20,426,000 $ 27,883,956 $27,851,459 99.88% § 34,778
4,829,216 20,142,000 24,971,216 24 966,369 99.98% 36,945
4,685,811 19,555,000 24,240,811 24,219,148 99.91% 45,243
3,127 116 18,601,000 21,628,116 21,641,373 100.06% 27,424
2,860,368 17,566,000 20,426,368 20,420,758 99.97% 42,150
2,925,386 16,899,300 19,824,686 19,811,739 99.93% 52,998
2,729,979 15,813,611 18,543,590 18,537,786 99.97% 65,425
2,631,082 15,606,851 18,237,933 18,115,165 99.33% 57,488
2,686,561 14,861,543 17,548,104 17,483,984 99.63% 83,606
2,220,643 13,487,899 15,708,542 15,717,957 100.06% 51,020

City of Franklin

Collections in subsequent years a.re not shown because Milwaukee County
annually purchases all of the City's outstanding delinquent real estate taxes.
Payment for the real estate taxes are received by the City every August pursuant
to the County's settlement procedures. Outstanding delinguent taxes represent
personal property taxes which the City attempts further collection until March of the
following year. At that time the balances are charged back to each of the taxing
juristictions in proportion to the amounts levied. Subsequent collections are
insignificant and refunded to all taxing juristictions in relation to the amounts

originally levied.

Total collections may be greater than or less than the total levy in any year due
to changes in outstanding delinquent taxes, collection of prior year omitted taxes
and Wisconsin Section 70.43 corrections.

Page 101



zol abed

‘S9)NEIS WISUOOSIAA L3im aoueploode Ul
suopsIpsun| Xe} ay} 0} SUOHOS||0D SISl pUE Pa][iq SJUNOWIE SJO3i0d 'senadoud aiqEXE} || 10} Sijiq Xe} seonpoud ‘'sjsenbal Aas| s} S[Ejo} UiPjUBL JO A eyl
‘Jeak BUIMO[|0} BU} U SN 10} JEak AAS| BU} JO JAqUIBAON Ul AA3] XE} paAosdde Jisy) UipueL JO AIID B4} O} SHUANS 80 Lonalpsunf Bupe} yoeg  8ioN

‘SOXE | O JUBLUSIE)S 2NUBASY JO JUSWeda( WSUOISIAA JO 18IS 190In0g

655'01519 062828 195'989'2 £pS 198 goz'ezl'e 11§'616'C  659'606'T  Cev'vEB'L  [€41'9Z6°0T  Z06'80%'0L vee's0y Loog
88Z°L¥E'e9 13718 V) Z80'1€9'2 168'009'G1 028'LvV'E 1/€'692'y  6G6'6£9'Z  GEL'688'L  FIS'SI80Z 965180l Z09'ryy zood
20l'cey'99 067'629 616'62L'C 119'€18'GL S00'8.%'€ 910'08S'y  26'OV.'T  60T'GHE’L  9SGIPIL'ET  660'286°01 £6L'08Y €002
£€9'061'0L 196°09L 98€'626'C 00€'662°9L SOP'GOL'E bpL'9/6F  T6V'I86'T  €15'7.0CT  06'TIS'ET  BL0'VOL'LL 68E'9ES 002
7es'6LL'TL €L1'9e9 £9€£'098'Z 000'995°21 cle'v.I6'E 99/'v/F'S  Z06'S9L'C  96€'986'L LI9'9L6'€T  ZLY'0LET) 125'895 500¢
S¥5'065° 22 9z1'089 gLLzzi'e 000°105'81 609'GLL'Y 98G'G08'S  6SE'E0L'€  06¥'8LL'T  018'%.IS'SZ rLO'CBOEL GEV'1LS ' 9002
LLL'PLG P8 010’699 118’689’y 000'655'61 8/1'662'¥ 0/5'191'9  €TL'Z6L'Y  GLL'6VZT  CYPYES'ST  L0P'ETSEL 560’929 2002
82.°062'98 0zZ0'8EL gLz'6e8'y 000'2¥L'02 0LL'GL8'Y 6L0'ZvL'0  SOL'WOZY  Z0Z'ZIE'T  Y.Q'OLV'BT  TBE'BYSTL 085'199 2002
906'960°¢6 Ssh'aLe 056'L5V'L 000'92¥'02 L50'vIS'Y [10'Zv8'0  0Z6'COV'Y  SOL'YEY'T  £2T'TEQ0E  €LLYS8'YL 000799 6002

c69'VeL've ¢ ¥BR'RS. ¢ SOSZEL'9 $ 000'596'02 § lev'slLY 8 166'Z15'0¢ CEE'OIB'YS IEO'VOV'TS GGL'GES'LES 0E8'TLISL $ .06'z29 ¢ 0102

0], sabley) szl [eaoT AsSiN ALYIN uipueiq [TBUNYAA uipuely AUncH UISUODSIAN  JBBA
[eads Xel -yealD YBD agynEMIi 10 8IS Anan
upiueld 10 Al SpmsIg 100U0S

siBaA Ud] 1seT
uonoIpsSUNy Xe | AQ SaIAeT Xe L AUadold
NITMNWYHA 40 ALID
0% 8[qEL



€0l abed

uonels aoljod MaU & Buipjing Ioj pasn aJam spasdoid “000'000°0L$ pansst A0 ayl 000z Vi

sjoafoid syJom 2lgnd pue uopels auy ‘Areiql mau e Buip|ing Joj pasn aism spesdold '000'000'01 % pansst KD ay) Loz Ul

feleiq pue UoElS o1 ‘uone;s aaljod au jo uotnod e Joj fed o} waludoeAsp maU 1o} SMOf|e 1B} oueUipIo 83} joedw ue paysiigelse AND Y ZoogT Ul
s1oafoid syom aljgnd pue sjouisig 1L mau om] Joj Buipun) apiroid 0] pasn s1em spaeooid "000'000'0L$ pansst AiD syl GOOZ Ul

spuoq anuaAal a3} Bujisixs SoUBUSI 0} PISN 3J8M SP33D0Id "000'000°0L$ PaNSS! A9 8Ul 9007 Y|

Sj0UISIq 1L Jos pasn aem 0L $ pue spuog uoiedigo [e1auab Bujjsixe 8oUBUYS! O} PASN S1om NGZ6 6% JO SPadd0ld "000'526'61$ panss Ao eyl 2002 W

sjoLsi 411 o} Buipuny apinoid o) pasn aiom SPI8V0Id "000'000°01L$ PSS AND suj 800T Ul SSION
¢} SlqeL Ul punoj 8q ues awody) feuosied pue uopeindod {2
g oj0e] Ul punoy aue sanjea Auedold (enjoy pajews3 {1)
960°'L  %SL¥ %89' A (000'ss9'vz)  (969°26%'L) 000'65L'66  000'066 000°6S9'vZ  000'082°LE  000°0S.°LL  poz
918  %00'¢ %9L'1 ges'680'sz  (005'2ZEL'S) (000'0ls's?)  (ev6'iLL'D) 000°0.6'SS 00006 000°'0/6'€Z  000'S£0'0Z  000'SsZy'LL  co0T
G0L  9%8ST %S6°0 gel's6l'ze  (192'820'G) (0o0'022'22)  (ee0'ziS'L) 000'0£0'LS - 000'0/2'22  000°6ZL'ZL  000'SZ0'LL €002
029 %lZT %S0 vey'0e2'6L  (000'EV6'Y) (000'0£0'02)  (995'92)) o00'0eR'vy - 000'0E0'0Z  000°G0'PL  000'SZL'0L  OOT
286 %LEL %ZY'0 gsi'ozrzt  (000'%SL'Y) (0o0'sL2'v2)  (grs'ell's) 000'519'0§ - 000'GL2°ZL  000°GZ0'€T  000'GZR'6 5002
6¥2 %S0 %PT 0 ¢6t'L02's  (000'.8%'Y) (000'569'€2) com.mmqo 1) ooo'seler - 000'G6L'S 000'sze’le  000'GLL'® 9002
oL %ZF0 %810 GL5'699'  (002'¥6Z'Y) (ooo's/zg'0g)  (gez'Ove'zl)  000080CS - 000°62£'T 000'625'6E  000°08L°0F  200C
vee %20 %420 09.'s98'z  (000'SLL'Y) {(000'00L'6e)  {(0¥Z'sEe'®) 000'080'9s - - _ 000'060'0F  000'0E0'0L $ 800T
802 %890 %810 vi¥'szo’s  (989°TLL'S) (000'sve'0g)  {006'820'2) 000'sel'sy - - 000'6gZ'se  000'088'6 600%
9l § WIN 2810 z/5's28's ¢ (0SL'0z6'v) ¢ (0o0'tzL'or) ¢ (822'120°¢) § 000'068'6E$ - s - ¢ 000°091'0€ ¢ 000'08l'6 $ 0L0Z
ejiden  alloou| anep 1ad juswdopasg $1911810 sasUeleq 1433 SION spuog SSJ0N spuog Jeal
l8d jeuosiad Apedoid pepuog alnin4 Burpoueul 4 pund papuog suoneBiao anuanay suonebiqo suoneBigo  [e9sid
(Z) Joweosd [|enpy |elausn wolj shp jeluawWaIou|]  9dIAJRg 18] jelaus) Z2EIELS) osBa jelauacy [erauen)
() palewns3 BN SJUNOWY 8887 XE] Woll anp 8837 [ejol laleppn
10 Jusdlad SJUNOLLY 8897 adAl-ssauisng EJUSLISACD)
(1) _ 199Q papuog [eleue9

Ll 8iqel

siegA Us] iseT
BupueIsSINg Jged pepuog [eiauas) 19N Jo soley

NIMTMNVYA 40O ALID



‘JOABMOH 'TUNOJ2E OJUI USHE)} 8¢ PINOYS $8SSBUISNG PUE JUSPIS

oL ebed
1q0p uonebiqo uoisuad Ul 000‘000'00F$ Penss! AUN0Y sdXNEMIN 600T Ul |,
Jowsip Buiddepaao yoes jo 1qep eyl Buikeda Joy ajqisuocdsal 210818y} pUE ‘Juapisel & S| JoAedxe) Maas jeu Aidwi Jou sa0p siy)

al ay} Aq aulog Usping Joep alnue ey} jaep w.er-Buo| Aedal pue anss| 0} Ajllige

s,A310 ay) Buuspisuod usym ‘1ey) sezjubooal ssa00.d siyL ‘AuD au jo salepunoq doiydelBosB ayy LM ‘Wed uljses| 18 ‘apiouloD Jey) asoy) aue

sjuswiwasob Buiddelisag enuanay Jo Juswipedsq sy Aq peujuiisiep ebejussied pue Jun [ejuswueach yoes Aq pepiroid Buipuelsino 1gea 910N
"anusAey Jo Juswedad S1ES Sul oy sabejuaniad s|qeondde pue uopoysun| Buixe} yoea Aq pelddns uogewwioful 180 :a0inog
226'112°1T) 000'00§'vE 22C6°'LL2'.8 £0z'zeCT ¥e 8sr'08L°c 185°0L2'V £62'162'} 000°050°LE ley'ese'ee L00Z
(AR A A TA] poo'oov'ze  ZMPLve'/8 $85'0Z¥'9T L/8'8EL'E 6.8'28L'Y vLL LT 000'0/6'8C  £98°210'vC 2002
0St'6oL 611 000'008'82  0G¥'G95'06 ¥26'760°C¢ 0L2'S0L'E 118068 621'G80°L 000'008'9¢  9/8'065'€C £00Z
989'006'9L} 000'008'YC  989'901'C6 £50'01L6'7E 910°290'¢ 9£0'/6E'p 609'1786 000'505'v2 ALK RAZATA 002
9/6'0z.'/gL  000'006'C€  9.6'028'76 9/6'718'/E LEQ'EST'E  POLTLS'G /81'06L'L  000°001'zC  TLB'6S8'YC 5002
628°L2Z'qEL 000'008'Ly  628'L29'th 066'GLY'6E $98'v68'C ¥20'299'G B.¥° 166 000's¥S'6l 116'960°6Z 9002
LL8'V0Z YL 000506V L/8'66Y't76 6¥'2.8'0F 881'€69'C ooL'21E's Ge'ves Q00'GLO'SL ovL'lLy've 1002
6E1'66.L'9G1 000°080°95 8E1'61L00L L02'GLE'08 278'0E6C 60£'628'8 Zh1'86% 000‘see'et 669'v18'vT 8002
199'0Z¥ 991 000'G9L 'Sy 199'G5Z' 121 L02'025'6Y Z28'0E6'C 000'098'6 086'86¢ 000'098°6 8616898y 6002
£6'099'69l $ 000'068'6¢ ¢ £.6'0..'GTi 817'906°€S 1v0'vZo'r $ BIE'V08'8 ¢ olg'99g ¢ 000'066'8 $ TL9'G8Y'EY $ 0102
[ej0] ulpjueld fejoL 1d=Qd GSWIN DIV UpueidpSald e (IBUNUAA ulyue. Aunad AoysiH
o Ao SulddepsrO SI01481(] |00UDS aaynemin
TI6999 5oL & ZIESec gi0¢ ¢ [ejoL
000'068°6E %0000°001  000°068°6E upue.d Jo Ao
£16'9LL'GT) ZLe'sey'sen’e 1qeq Buiddepaap [ejoL
6L7'006'CS %G.L0S'S ¥20'68.'8.6 usig obelames uepiodona assnem|Iy
Ly0'v2a'y %BG9SY 000°6.2°L0¢ abs(j0D [2oiUYda L BalY aa)nemliiy
000'066'8 9%0000°001L  000°06G'8 1oUIsIg 002G UlpjUE.-
6LE'708'8 %6866'7L 626'669'8S 10Li1SIJ [00UOS UIBjuELL - 38810 MBD
916'09¢ %eeLG L 000'515'2 1o1IsIa 100YOS |IBUHLAA
2/9'68P'6Y ¢ %0885°G 65c'0/5'688 ¢ L Aunod aaxnem|in
, Ao o AID O} Buipuelsino 1qep uopaipsune
a|qeoldde a|gqeoydde  papuoq uonebigo
unowy afeluaoiad resoual BN

2l e1gel

0L0Z ‘L€ Jequedeqg

jgeq BuiddesaQ bue o240

NITMNVHd 40 ALID



CITY OF FRANKLIN

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
Last Ten Years

Table 13

Fiscal
year

2010
2009
2008
2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

(1

From Table 5

: Total
(1) 5% of Debt Legal

Equalized Equalized Applicable Debt Percent

Valuation Value to Limit Margin Used
$ 3,670,508,700 $ 183,525435 $39,890,000 $ 143,635435 21.74%
3,912,642,600 195,632,130 45,165,000 150,467,130 23.09%
3,898,387,300 194,919,365 56,080,000 138,839,365 28.77%
3,689,054,400 184,452,720 49,705,000 134,747,720 26.95%
3,481,759,700 174,087,985 41,600,000 132,487,985 23.90%
3,030,815,900 151,640,795 32,900,000 118,640,795 21.71%
2,681,945,500 134,097,275 24,800,000 109,297,275 18.49%
2,400,765,500 120,038,275 28,800,000 91,238,275 23.99%
2,223,010,500 111,150,525 32,400,000 78,750,625 29.15%
2,026,671,300 101,333,565 34,500,000 66,833,565 34.05%

Note: Under state statutes the City's outstanding general obligation debt may not exceed
five percent of total equalized property value.
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